UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549



FORM 8-K

CURRENT REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Date of Report: February 20, 2024

CUMMINS INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Indiana (State or other jurisdiction of Incorporation)

1-4949 (Commission File Number) 35-0257090 (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

500 Jackson Street
P. O. Box 3005
Columbus, Indiana 47202-3005
(Principal Executive Office) (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (812) 377-5000

Check the appropriate box below if the Form 8-K filing is intended to simultaneously satisfy the filing obligation of the registrant under any of the following provisions:

	Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 under	the Securities Act (17 CFR 230.425)			
	□ Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a-12 under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14a-12)				
	Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14d-2(b))				
	Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule	e 13e-4(c) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 2	(40.13e-4(c))		
Securit	es registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:				
	Title of each class	Trading symbol(s)	Name of each exchange on which registered		
	Common stock, \$2.50 par value	CMI	New York Stock Exchange		
	by check mark whether the registrant is an emerging gurities Exchange Act of 1934 (§240.12b-2 of this chapter		Securities Act of 1933 (§230.405 of this chapter) or Rule 12b-2 of		
			Emerging Growth Company		
	nerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the ing standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the	C	transition period for complying with any new or revised financial		

Item 2.03 Creation of a Direct Financial Obligation or an Obligation under an Off-Balance Sheet Arrangement of a Registrant

On February 20, 2024, Cummins Inc. (the "Company") completed a public offering (the "Offering") of \$500 million aggregate principal amount of the Company's 4.900% Senior Notes due 2029 (the "2029 Notes"), \$750 million aggregate principal amount of the Company's 5.150% Senior Notes due 2034 (the "20304 Notes) and \$1 billion aggregate principal amount of the Company's 5.450% Senior Notes due 2054 (the "2054 Notes," and together with the 2029 Notes and the 2034 Notes, the "Notes").

The Notes were issued under an Indenture (the "Base Indenture"), dated as of September 16, 2013, between the Company and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"), as supplemented by a Sixth Supplemental Indenture (the "Sixth Supplemental Indenture"), as Seventh Supplemental Indenture (the "Seventh Supplemental Indenture") and an Eighth Supplemental Indenture (the "Eighth Supplemental Indenture"), each dated as of February 20, 2024, between the Company and the Trustee, establishing the terms and providing for the issuance of the Notes (collectively, the "Supplemental Indentures").

The Sixth Supplemental Indenture and form of the 2029 Note, which is included therein, provide, among other things, that the 2029 Notes bear interest at a rate of 4.900% per year (payable semi-annually in arrears on February 20 and August 20 of each year, beginning on August 20, 2024), and will mature on February 20, 2029.

The Seventh Supplemental Indenture and form of the 2034 Note, which is included therein, provide, among other things, that the 2034 Notes bear interest at a rate of

5.150% per year (payable semi-annually in arrears on February 20 and August 20 of each year, beginning on August 20, 2024), and will mature on February 20, 2034.

The Eighth Supplemental Indenture and form of the 2054 Note, which is included therein, provide, among other things, that the 2054 Notes bear interest at a rate of 5.450% per (payable semi-annually in arrears on February 20 and August 20 of each year, beginning on August 20, 2024), and will mature on February 20, 2054.

The Company intends to use the net proceeds from the Offering for general corporate purposes, which may include repaying, redeeming, repurchasing and/or otherwise refinancing existing indebtedness.

The Company may redeem all or any portion of the Notes of each series at any time or from time to time. If the 2029 Notes are redeemed before the date that is one month prior to the maturity of the 2029 Notes, the 2034 Notes are redeemed before the date that is three months prior to the maturity of the 2034 Notes or the 2054 Notes are redeemed before the date that is six months prior to the maturity of the 2054 Notes, the redemption price will equal the principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed plus a make-whole premium. If the Company redeems the 2029 Notes on or after the date that is one month prior to the maturity date of the 2029 Notes, if the Company redeems the 2034 Notes on or after the date that is three months prior to the maturity date of the 2054 Notes on or after the date that is six months prior to the maturity date of the 2054 Notes, the redemption price for those Notes will equal 100% of the principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed. The Company will also pay accrued and unpaid interest on the principal amount being redeemed up to, but excluding, the redemption date.

The Supplemental Indentures contain customary events of default. If an event of default occurs and is continuing with respect to the Notes, then the Trustee or the holders of at least 25% of the principal amount of the outstanding Notes of that series may declare the Notes of that series to be due and payable immediately. In addition, in the case of an event of default arising from certain events of bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization, all outstanding Notes will become due and payable immediately without any declaration or other act on the part of the Trustee or the holders of the Notes.

The descriptions of the Base Indenture and the Supplemental Indentures set forth above are qualified by reference to the Base Indenture and the Supplemental Indentures filed as Exhibits 4.1, 4.2, 4.3 and 4.4, respectively, to this Current Report on Form 8-K and incorporated by reference herein.

Item 8.01 Other Events.

The Notes are registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, pursuant to a Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Registration No. 333-262584) that the Company filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") on February 8, 2022. The Company is also filing certain exhibits as part of this Current Report on Form 8-K for purposes of such Registration Statement. See "Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits."

Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits

(d) Exhibits. The exhibits below are filed herewith:

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No.	Description
<u>(4.1)</u>	Indenture, dated as of September 16, 2013, by and between Cummins Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association (incorporated by
	reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
	September 16, 2013 (Registration Statement No. 333-191189)).
<u>(4.2)</u>	Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 20, 2024, between Cummins Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association.
<u>(4.3)</u>	Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 20, 2024, between Cummins Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association.
<u>(4.4)</u>	Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 20, 2024, between Cummins Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association.
<u>(5.1)</u>	Opinion of Foley & Lardner LLP with respect to the Notes.
(23.1)	Consent of Foley & Lardner LLP (included in Exhibit 5.1).
(104)	Cover Page Interactive Data File (the Cover Page Interactive Data File is embedded within the Inline XBRL document).

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized

Date: February 20, 2024

CUMMINS INC.

/s/ Mark A. Smith

Mark A. Smith

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

CUMMINS INC.

and

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,

as Trustee

SIXTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE

Dated as of February 20, 2024

to Indenture dated as of September 16, 2013

4.900% Senior Notes due 2029

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		PAGE
Article I DEFIN	NITIONS	1
Section 1.01.	Definitions	1
Article II ESTA	ABLISHMENT OF SECURITIES	7
	Title of Securities	5
	Aggregate Principal Amount of Notes; Additional Notes	8
Section 2.03.	Authentication and Delivery of the Notes	8
	Payment of Principal and Interest on the Notes; Form of the Notes; Global Notes	<u> </u>
	Registration, Transfer and Exchange	<u> </u>
Section 2.06.		12
	Paying Agent; Custodian; Place of Payment	12
	Optional Redemption; Open Market Purchases, etc.	12
	Change of Control	14
	Sinking Fund	15
	Methods of Receiving Payments on the Notes	15
	Consolidation, Merger, Conveyance, Transfer or Lease	15
	Limitation on Liens	10
	Limitation on Sale and Leaseback Transactions	18
	Events of Default	19
	Modification and Waiver	20
Section 2.17.	Original Issue Discount	20
Article III MIS	CELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	20
Section 3.01.	Recitals By Company	20
Section 3.02.	Application to Notes Only	20
Section 3.03.	Benefits	21
Section 3.04.	Effective Date	21
Section 3.05.	Ratification	21
Section 3.06.	Instructions	21
Section 3.07.	Counterparts	21
Section 3.08.	Governing Law; Waiver of Jury Trial	22
EXHIBIT A - FO	DRM OF NOTE	

THIS SIXTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE (this "Supplemental Indenture"), dated as of February 20, 2024, is entered into by and between CUMMINS INC., an Indiana corporation (along with any successor thereto, the "Company"), and U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a national banking association (as successor-in-interest to U.S. Bank National Association), as Trustee (along with any successor thereto, the "Trustee").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Company and the Trustee entered into that certain Indenture, dated as of September 16, 2013 (the <u>Base Indenture</u>"), which provides for the issuance by the Company from time to time of Securities, in one or more series as provided therein;

WHEREAS, Section 2.1 of the Base Indenture provides for the Company and the Trustee to enter into an indenture supplemental to the Base Indenture to establish the form or terms of Securities of any series as provided by Sections 2.1 and 2.3 of the Base Indenture and to amend, modify or supplement the Base Indenture as it applies to such series; and

WHEREAS, all the conditions and requirements necessary to make this Supplemental Indenture, when duly executed and delivered, a valid and binding agreement in accordance with its terms and for the purposes herein expressed, have been performed and fulfilled.

NOW, THEREFORE:

In consideration of the agreements and obligations set forth herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

Section 1.01. <u>Definitions</u>.

For all purposes of this Supplemental Indenture, except as otherwise expressly provided for or unless the context otherwise requires:

- (a) Capitalized terms defined in the Base Indenture and used but not defined herein shall have the respective meanings given them in the Base Indenture;
- (b) All references herein to Articles and Sections, unless otherwise specified, refer to the corresponding Articles and Sections of this Supplemental Indenture; and

1

(c) The following terms shall have the indicated definitions and if the definition of any of the following terms differs from its respective definition set forth in the Base Indenture, the definition set forth herein shall control:

"Attributable Debt" in respect of a Sale and Leaseback Transaction means, on the date of any determination, the present value of the obligation of the lessee for net rental payments during the remaining term of the lease included in such Sale and Leaseback Transaction, including any period for which such lease has been extended or may, at the option of the lessor, be extended. Such present value shall be calculated using a discount rate equal to the interest rate set forth or implicit in the terms of such lease, determined in accordance with GAAP, or, if not practicable to determine such rate, the weighted average interest rate per annum borne by the Notes on such date of determination, in either case compounded semi-annually. "Net rental payments" means the total amount of rent payable by the lessee after excluding amounts required to be paid on account of maintenance and repairs, insurance, taxes, assessments, water rates and similar charges.

"Authorized Officers" has the meaning specified in Section 3.06.

"Base Indenture" has the meaning specified in the recitals hereto.

"Below Investment Grade Rating Event" means that the Notes cease to be rated with an Investment Grade Rating by at least two of the three Rating Agencies on any date during the period (the "Trigger Period") commencing on the date of the first public announcement by the Company of any Change of Control (or pending Change of Control) and ending 60 days following consummation of such Change of Control (which Trigger Period shall be extended following consummation of a Change of Control for so long as any of the Rating Agencies has publicly announced that it is considering a possible ratings downgrade); provided, however, that a Below Investment Grade Rating Event otherwise arising by virtue of particular reductions in rating shall not be deemed to have occurred in respect of a particular Change of Control (and thus shall not be deemed a Below Investment Grade Rating Event for purposes of the definition of Change of Control Triggering Event) if the Rating Agencies making the reduction in rating to which this definition would otherwise apply do not announce or publicly confirm or inform the Trustee in writing at the Company's request that the reduction was the result, in whole or in part, of any event or circumstance comprised of, or arising as a result of, or in respect of, the applicable Change of Control (whether or not the applicable Change of Control shall have occurred at the time of the Below Investment Grade Rating Event).

"Business Day" means any day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, that is not a day on which the Trustee or banking institutions in New York, New York are authorized or obligated by law or executive order to close.

"Certificated Notes" has the meaning specified in Section 2.05(e).

"Change of Control" means the occurrence of any of the following:

(1) the direct or indirect sale, lease, transfer, exchange, conveyance or other disposition (other than by way of merger or consolidation or as a pledge for security purposes only), in one or a series of related transactions, of all or substantially all of the properties or assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole to any "person" (as that term is used in Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act) other than the Company or one of its Subsidiaries;

2

- (2) the consummation of any transaction (including, without limitation, any merger or consolidation) the result of which is that any "person" (as defined above) becomes the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of more than 50% of the Company's then outstanding Voting Stock, measured by voting power rather than number of shares; or
 - (3) the approval by the holders of the Company's common stock of a plan for the Company's liquidation or dissolution;

other than, in the case of clause (1) or (3) above, any transaction or series of related transactions that complies with Section 2.12.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a transaction will not be deemed to involve a Change of Control under clause (2) of this definition if: (a) the Company becomes a direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of a holding company and (b) either (i) the direct or indirect holders of the Voting Stock of such holding company immediately following that transaction are substantially the same as the holders of the Company's Voting Stock immediately prior to that transaction, or (ii) immediately following that transaction, no "person" (as that term is used in Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act), other than a holding company satisfying the requirements of this sentence, is the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of more than 50% of the Voting Stock of such holding company.

- "Change of Control Offer" has the meaning specified in Section 2.09(a).
- "Change of Control Payment" has the meaning specified in Section 2.09(a).
- "Change of Control Payment Date" has the meaning specified in Section 2.09(a).
- "Change of Control Triggering Event" means the occurrence of both a Change of Control and a Below Investment Grade Rating Event; provided that no Change of Control Triggering Event will be deemed to have occurred in connection with any particular Change of Control unless and until such Change of Control has actually been consummated.
 - "Company" has the meaning specified in the recitals hereto.
- "Consolidated Subsidiary" means a Subsidiary of the Company whose financial statements are consolidated with the Company's financial statements in accordance with GAAP.
- "Consolidated Total Assets" means, at any time of determination, the total assets of the Company and its Consolidated Subsidiaries, as shown on the consolidated balance sheet in the Company's then latest quarterly or annual report filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, prepared in accordance with GAAP.
- "Debt" means, at any time, (1) all obligations of the Company and all obligations of any Consolidated Subsidiary, to the extent such obligations would appear as a liability upon the consolidated balance sheet of the Company and the Consolidated Subsidiaries, in accordance with GAAP, (a) for borrowed money, (b) evidenced by bonds, debentures, notes or other similar instruments and (c) in respect of drawn and unreimbursed amounts under letters of credit supporting any Debt of others, and (2) all guarantees by the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary of Debt of others.

3

- "Depositary" means, with respect to the Notes issuable or issued in whole or in part in the form of one or more Global Notes, a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act that is appointed to act as Depositary for such Notes as contemplated by Section 2.04(d) or Section 2.05, as the case may be.
- "Electronic Means" means the following communications methods: e-mail as a portable document format ("pdf") or other replicating image attached to an e-mail, facsimile transmission, secure electronic transmission containing applicable authorization codes, passwords and/or authentication keys issued by the Trustee, or another method or system specified by the Trustee as available for use in connection with its services hereunder.
 - "Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
 - "Fitch" means Fitch Ratings Inc. and its successors.
- "Funded Debt" means (1) all Debt for money borrowed having a maturity of more than 12 months from the date as of which the determination is made or having a maturity of 12 months or less but by its terms being renewable or extendible beyond 12 months from such date at the option of the borrower (excluding any amount thereof included in current liabilities) and (2) all rental obligations payable more than 12 months from such date under leases that are capitalized in accordance with GAAP (such rental obligations to be included as Funded Debt at the amount so capitalized).
 - "GAAP" means generally accepted accounting principles as in effect from time to time in the United States of America.
 - "Global Note" has the meaning specified in Section 2.04(d).
- "Incur" means to, directly or indirectly, issue, assume, guaranty, incur, become directly or indirectly liable with respect to (including as a result of an acquisition (by way of merger, consolidation or otherwise)), or otherwise become responsible for, contingently or otherwise.
 - "Indenture" means the Base Indenture, as amended, modified and supplemented by this Supplemental Indenture.
 - "Instructions" has the meaning specified in Section 3.06.
- "Investment Grade Rating" means a rating equal to or higher than Baa3 (or the equivalent) by Moody's; a rating equal to or higher than BBB- (or the equivalent) by S&P; a rating equal to or higher than BBB- (or the equivalent) by Fitch; or the equivalent investment grade credit rating from any replacement Rating Agency selected by the Company.

4

- "Issue Date" means the date of the initial issuance of the Notes, which shall be the date hereof.
- "Lien" means any mortgage, pledge, hypothecation, charge, encumbrance, security interest, statutory or other lien, or other security or similar agreement or similar preferential arrangement of any kind or nature whatsoever, including any conditional sale or other title retention agreement having substantially the same economic effect as any of these.
 - "Moody's" means Moody's Investors Service, Inc. and its successors.
- "Net Proceeds" means, with respect to a Sale and Leaseback Transaction, the aggregate amount of cash or cash equivalents received by the Company or a Consolidated Subsidiary, less the sum of all payments, fees, commissions and expenses incurred in connection with such transaction, and less the amount (estimated reasonably and in good faith by the Company) of income, franchise, sales and other applicable taxes required to be paid by the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary in connection with such transaction in the taxable year that such transaction is consummated or in the two immediately succeeding taxable years, the computation of which shall take into account the reduction in tax liability resulting from any available operating losses and net operating loss carryovers, tax credits and tax credit carryforwards, and similar tax attributes.
- "Nonrecourse Obligation" means indebtedness or lease payment obligations substantially related to (i) the acquisition of assets not previously owned by the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary or (ii) the financing of a project involving the development or expansion of the Company's or any Consolidated Subsidiary's properties, in either case, as to which the obligee with respect to such indebtedness or obligation has no recourse to the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary or the Company's or any Consolidated Subsidiary's assets other than the assets which were acquired with the proceeds of such transaction or the project financed with the proceeds of such transaction (and the proceeds thereof), other than recourse for fraud, misrepresentation, misapplication of cash, waste, environmental claims and liabilities, prohibited transfers, violations

of single purpose entity covenants and other circumstances customarily excluded by institutional lenders from exculpation provisions and/or included in separate guaranty or indemnification agreements in non-recourse financings.

"Notes" has the meaning specified in Section 2.01.

"Par Call Date" has the meaning specified in Section 2.08.

"Participants" means members of, or participants in, the Depositary.

"Principal Property" means any manufacturing plant, warehouse or other similar facility or any parcel of real estate or group of contiguous parcels of real estate owned by the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary the gross book value of which on the date as of which the determination is being made exceeds 1% of Consolidated Total Assets and that is located in the United States of America, Canada or the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, other than any such manufacturing plant, warehouse or other similar facility or parcel or group of contiguous parcels of real estate that in the opinion of the Company's Board of Directors is not of material importance to the business conducted by the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole.

5

"Rating Agency" means (1) each of Moody's, S&P and Fitch; and (2) if any of Moody's, S&P or Fitch ceases to rate the Notes or fails to make a rating of the Notes publicly available for reasons outside of the Company's control, a "nationally recognized statistical rating organization" within the meaning of Section 3(a)(62) of the Exchange Act selected by the Company (as certified by a resolution of the Company's Board of Directors) as a replacement agency for Moody's, S&P and/or Fitch, as the case may be; provided that the Company shall give notice of any such replacement to the Trustee.

"Register of Notes" has the meaning specified in Section 2.05.

"Registrar" has the meaning specified in Section 2.05.

"S&P" means S&P Global Ratings, a division of S&P Global Inc., and its successors.

"Sale and Leaseback Transaction" means any arrangement whereby the Company or any of its Subsidiaries have sold or transferred, or will sell or transfer, property and have or will take back a lease pursuant to which the rental payments are calculated to amortize the purchase price of the property substantially over the useful life of such property.

"Significant Subsidiary" means any of the Company's Subsidiaries that would be a "Significant Subsidiary" within the meaning of Rule 1-02 under Regulation S-X promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission.

"Subsidiary" means any corporation, partnership or other legal entity (a) the accounts of which are consolidated with the Company's in accordance with GAAP and (b) of which, in the case of a corporation, partnership or other legal entity, more than 50% of the outstanding Voting Stock is owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company or by one or more other Subsidiaries.

"Supplemental Indenture" has the meaning specified in the recitals hereto.

"Treasury Rate" means, with respect to any Redemption Date, the yield determined by the Company in accordance with the following two paragraphs.

The Treasury Rate shall be determined by the Company after 4:15 p.m., New York City time (or after such time as yields on U.S. government securities are posted daily by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System), on the third Business Day preceding the Redemption Date based upon the yield or yields for the most recent day that appear after such time on such day in the most recent statistical release published by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System designated as "Selected Interest Rates (Daily) – H.15" (or any successor designation or publication) ("H.15") under the caption "U.S. government securities—Treasury constant maturities—Nominal" (or any successor caption or heading) ("H.15 TCM"). In determining the Treasury Rate, the Company shall select, as applicable: (1) the yield for the Treasury constant maturity on H.15 exactly equal to the period from the Redemption Date to the Par Call Date (the "Remaining Life"); or (2) if there is no such Treasury constant maturity on H.15 immediately shorter than and one yield corresponding to the Treasury constant maturity on H.15 immediately longer than the Remaining Life – and shall interpolate to the Par Call Date on a straight-line basis (using the actual number of days) using such yields and rounding the result to three decimal places; or (3) if there is no such Treasury constant maturity on H.15 shorter than or longer than the Remaining Life, the yield for the single Treasury constant maturity on H.15 closest to the Remaining Life. For purposes of this paragraph, the applicable Treasury constant maturity or maturities on H.15 shall be deemed to have a maturity date equal to the relevant number of months or years, as applicable, of such Treasury constant maturity from the redemption date.

6

If on the third Business Day preceding the Redemption Date, H.15 TCM is no longer published, the Company shall calculate the Treasury Rate based on the rate per annum equal to the semi-annual equivalent yield to maturity at 11:00 a.m., New York City time, on the second Business Day preceding such redemption date of the United States Treasury security maturing on, or with a maturity that is closest to, the Par Call Date, as applicable. If there is no United States Treasury security maturing on the Par Call Date but there are two or more United States Treasury securities with a maturity date equally distant from the Par Call Date, one with a maturity date preceding the Par Call Date and one with a maturity date following the Par Call Date, the Company shall select the United States Treasury securities meting the Par Call Date. If there are two or more United States Treasury securities maturing on the Par Call Date or two or more United States Treasury security that is trading closest to par based upon the average of the bid and asked prices for such United States Treasury securities at 11:00 a.m., New York City time. In determining the Treasury Rate in accordance with the terms of this paragraph, the semi-annual yield to maturity of the applicable United States Treasury security, and rounded to three decimal places.

"Trustee" has the meaning specified in the recitals hereto.

"Voting Stock" of any specified Person as of any date means the Capital Stock of such Person that is at the time entitled to vote generally in the election of the Board of Directors of such Person.

The following provisions of this Article 2 are made pursuant to Section 2.1 of the Base Indenture in order to establish and set forth the terms of a series of Securities. In the event that any of the following terms conflict with those set forth in the Base Indenture, the terms set forth herein shall control.

Section 2.01. Title of Securities. There is hereby established a series of Securities designated the "4.900 % Senior Notes due 2029" (the "Notes").

7

Section 2.02. Aggregate Principal Amount of Notes; Additional Notes.

- (a) There are initially to be authenticated and delivered \$500,000,000 principal amount of the Notes.
- (b) At any time and from time to time after the Issue Date there may be authenticated and delivered an unlimited principal amount of additional Notes without the consent of any Holder of the Notes. Any such additional Notes will have the same ranking, interest rate, maturity date, redemption rights and other terms as any outstanding Notes, other than with respect to the date of issuance, the issue price and, in some cases, the first interest payment date. All Notes issued hereunder, including any additional Notes, will constitute a single series of Securities under the Indenture; provided, however, that any such additional Notes that are not fungible with the Notes issued on the Issue Date for United States federal income tax purposes shall be issued with CUSIP and ISIN numbers different from the CUSIP and ISIN numbers assigned to the Notes issued on the Issue Date.
- (c) Nothing contained in this Section 2.02 or elsewhere in the Indenture, or in the Notes, is intended to or shall limit execution by the Company or authentication or delivery by the Trustee of Notes under the circumstances contemplated by Sections 2.8, 2.9, 2.13 and 9.5 of the Base Indenture.

Section 2.03. Authentication and Delivery of the Notes.

- (a) At any time and from time to time after the execution and delivery of this Supplemental Indenture, the Company may deliver Notes executed by the Company to the Trustee for authentication, and the Trustee shall thereupon authenticate and deliver such Notes to or upon the written order of the Company, signed by one or more Officers of the Company, without further action by the Company. In authenticating such Notes and accepting the additional responsibilities under the Indenture in relation to such Notes, the Trustee shall be entitled to receive and (subject to Section 7.1 of the Base Indenture) shall be fully protected in relying upon:
 - (i) an Officers' Certificate prepared in accordance with Section 11.5 of the Base Indenture; and
 - (ii) an Opinion of Counsel prepared in accordance with Section 11.5 of the Base Indenture, which shall state that the Base Indenture, this Supplemental Indenture and the Notes have been duly authorized and, when authenticated and delivered by the Trustee and issued by the Company in the manner and subject to any conditions specified in such Opinion of Counsel, will constitute valid and binding obligations of the Company, enforceable in accordance with their terms, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent transfer, reorganization, moratorium and other laws of general applicability relating to or affecting creditors' rights and to general equitable principles, regardless of whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law.
- (b) The Trustee shall have the right to decline to authenticate and deliver any Notes under this Section if the Trustee, being advised by counsel, determined that such action may not lawfully be taken by the Company or if the issue of such Notes pursuant to the Indenture will affect the Trustee's own rights, duties or immunities under the Indenture in a manner not reasonably acceptable to the Trustee.

8

(c) Notwithstanding anything in the Indenture to the contrary, authentication and execution of any Notes by counterpart shall satisfy the requirements of the Indenture with respect to the authentication and execution of such Notes.

Section 2.04. Payment of Principal and Interest on the Notes; Form of the Notes; Global Notes.

- (a) The Notes will mature on February 20, 2029 and will bear interest at the rate of 4.900% per annum. Interest on the Notes will be payable semi-annually, in cash, in arrears on February 20 and August 20 of each year, commencing on August 20, 2024, to the Holders thereof at the close of business on the immediately preceding February 5 and August 5 of each year. Interest on the Notes will accrue from and including the most recent date to which interest has been paid or, if no interest has been paid, from and including the date of issuance of the Notes. Interest on the Notes will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year comprised of twelve 30-day months.
 - (b) The Notes shall be issued in minimum denominations of \$2,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 in excess thereof.
- (c) The Notes shall be issued in registered form without coupons, substantially in the form of Exhibit A attached hereto. The form of the Trustee's certificate of authentication for the Notes shall be in substantially the form set forth in the form of Note attached hereto as Exhibit A. Each Note shall be dated the date of authentication thereof.
- (d) The entire initially issued principal amount of the Notes shall initially be evidenced by one or more Global Securities (collectively, the <u>Global Notes</u>") registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC, or another nominee of DTC. The Company initially appoints DTC to act as Depositary with respect to the Global Notes and the Trustee to act as custodian with respect to the Global Notes. So long as the Depositary, or its nominee, is the registered Holder and owner of the Global Notes, the Depositary or such nominee, as the case may be, will be considered the sole owner and Holder of the Notes for all purposes under the Indenture.

Section 2.05. Registration, Transfer and Exchange.

(a) Registrar; Register of Notes. The Company shall cause to be kept at the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee a register of Notes (the register maintained in such office and in any other office or agency of the Company in a place of payment being herein sometimes collectively referred to as the "Register of Notes") in which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Company shall provide for the registration of Notes and of transfers of Notes. The Trustee is hereby appointed "Registrar" for the purpose of registering the Notes and transfers of the Notes as herein provided. The Company may appoint one or more co-Registrars with respect to the Notes and the term "Registrar" includes any co-Registrar. The Registrar shall retain copies of all letters, notices and other written communications received pursuant to Section 2.8 of the Base Indenture or this Section 2.05. The Company shall have the right to inspect and make copies of all such letters, notices or other written communications at any reasonable time upon the giving of reasonable written notice to the Registrar.

(b) No Obligation of the Trustee. The Trustee shall have no obligation or duty to monitor, determine or inquire as to compliance with any restrictions on transfer imposed under the Indenture or under applicable law with respect to any transfer of any interest in any Note (including any transfers between or among Participants or beneficial owners of interests in any Global Note) other than to require delivery of such certificates and other documentation or evidence as are expressly required by, and to do so if and when expressly required by the terms of, the Indenture, and to examine the same to determine substantial compliance as to form with the express requirements hereof. Neither the Trustee nor any agent of the Company or the Trustee shall have any responsibility for the actions or omissions of the Depositary or the accuracy of the books and records of the Depositary.

(c) Transfers of Notes and Interests in Notes.

- (i) The Registrar shall not be required (A) to issue, authenticate, register the transfer of or exchange Notes for a period of 15 days before the mailing of a notice of redemption of such Notes to be redeemed or (B) to register the transfer of or exchange of any Notes so selected for redemption in whole or in part.
- (ii) All Notes issued upon any transfer or exchange of Notes shall be valid and binding obligations of the Company, evidencing the same debt, and entitled to the same benefits under the Indenture, as the Notes surrendered upon such transfer or exchange.
- (iii) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 2.05, unless and until it is exchanged in whole or in part for Certificated Notes, the Global Notes may not be transferred except as a whole by the Depositary to a nominee of such Depositary, or by a nominee of such Depositary to such Depositary or another nominee of such Depositary, or by such Depositary or any such nominee to a successor Depositary or a nominee of such successor Depositary.
- (iv) Ownership of interests in the Global Notes will be shown on, and the transfer of those ownership interests will be effected through, records maintained by the Depositary (with respect to Participants' interests) and such Participants (with respect to the owners of beneficial interests in such Global Notes).
- (d) Cancellation or Adjustment of Global Notes. At such time as all beneficial interests in a particular Global Note have been exchanged for Certificated Notes or a particular Global Note has been redeemed, repurchased or canceled in whole and not in part, each such Global Note shall be returned to or retained and canceled by the Trustee. At any time prior to such cancellation, if any beneficial interest in a Global Note is exchanged for or transferred to a Person who shall take delivery thereof in the form of a beneficial interest in another Global Note or for Certificated Notes, the principal amount of Notes represented by such Global Note shall be reduced accordingly and an endorsement shall be made on the Schedule of Increases and Decreases to such Global Note by the Trustee or by the Depositary at the direction of the Trustee to reflect such reduction; and if the beneficial interest is being exchanged for or transferred to a Person who shall take delivery thereof in the form of a beneficial interest in another Global Note, such other Global Note shall be increased accordingly and an endorsement shall be made on the Schedule of Increases and Decreases to such Global Note by the Trustee or by the Depositary at the direction of the Trustee to reflect such increase.

10

(e) Certificated Notes.

- (i) If at any time the Depositary (A) notifies the Company that it is unwilling or unable to continue as Depositary for the Global Notes and the Depositary fails to appoint a successor Depositary or (B) ceases to be a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act, then the Company shall appoint a successor Depositary eligible under applicable law with respect to such Global Notes. If a successor Depositary eligible to be a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act for such Global Notes is not appointed by the Company within 90 days after the date Company receives such notice or becomes aware of the unwillingness, inability or ineligibility of the Depositary set forth in clauses (A) and (B) above, the Company will execute, and the Trustee, upon receipt of a Company Order for the authentication and delivery of definitive Notes of such series and tenor ("Certificated Notes"), will authenticate and deliver such Certificated Notes, in any authorized denominations, in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of such Global Notes, in exchange for such Global Notes.
- (ii) In addition, if the Company, at its option, notifies the Trustee in writing that it elects to cause the issuance of the Certificated Notes, then the Company shall execute, and the Trustee, upon receipt of a Company Order for the authentication and delivery of Certificated Notes, will authenticate and deliver, Certificated Notes in any authorized denominations, in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of the Global Notes, in exchange for such Global Notes.
- (iii) Any time the Notes are to be authenticated and delivered in the form of Certificated Notes, the Company agrees to supply the Trustee with a reasonable supply of Certificated Notes without the legend required by Section 2.06(a) and the Trustee agrees to hold such Notes in safekeeping until authenticated and delivered pursuant to the terms of the Indenture.
- (iv) The Depositary may surrender one or more Global Notes in exchange in whole or in part for Certificated Notes as provided herein on such terms as are acceptable to the Company and such Depositary. Thereupon, the Company shall execute, and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver, without service charge,
 - (A) to the Person specified by such Depositary new Notes of the same series and tenor, of any authorized denominations as requested by such Person, in an aggregate principal amount equal to and in exchange for such Person's beneficial interest in the Global Note; and
 - (B) to such Depositary a new Global Note in a denomination equal to the difference, if any, between the principal amount of the surrendered Global Note and the aggregate principal amount of Notes authenticated and delivered pursuant to clause (A) above.
- (v) Notes issued in exchange for a Global Note pursuant to this Section 2.05 shall be registered in such names and in such authorized denominations as the Depositary for such Global Note, pursuant to instructions from its Participants or otherwise, shall instruct the Trustee or an agent of the Company or the Trustee. The Trustee or such agent shall deliver such Notes to or as directed by the Persons in whose names such Notes are so registered.

11

Section 2.06. Legends.

Each Global Note shall bear a legend in substantially the following form:

UNLESS THIS SECURITY IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY, A NEW YORK CORPORATION ("DTC"), TO THE COMPANY OR ITS AGENT FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY SECURITY ISSUED IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC (AND ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO. OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.

Section 2.07. Paying Agent; Custodian; Place of Payment. The Company initially appoints the Trustee to act as the Paying Agent with respect to the Notes. The Company may appoint one or more additional Paying Agents, and the term "Paying Agent" includes any additional Paying Agent. The Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee shall be the initial place of payment. The office of any additional Paying Agent shall also be a place of payment.

Section 2.08. Optional Redemption; Open Market Purchases, etc. Prior to January 20,2029 (one month prior to the maturity date of the Notes) (the 'Par Call Date'), the Company may redeem the Notes at its option, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, at a redemption price (expressed as a percentage of principal amount and rounded to three decimal places) equal to the greater of:

(a) (1) the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest thereon discounted to the Redemption Date (assuming the Notes matured on the Par Call Date) on a semi-annual basis (assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) at the Treasury Rate plus 15 basis points less (2) interest accrued to the Redemption Date; and

12

(b) 100% of the principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed;

plus, in either case, accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the Redemption Date.

On or after the Par Call Date, the Company may redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes being redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the Redemption Date.

The Company's actions and determinations in determining the redemption price shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes, absent manifest error. Notice of any redemption of Notes will be mailed or electronically delivered (or otherwise transmitted in accordance with the Depositary's procedures) at least 10 days but not more than 60 days before the applicable Redemption Date, to each Holder of the Notes to be redeemed as provided in Section 11.2 of the Base Indenture. Notice of any redemption of any Notes in connection with a corporate transaction that is pending (including an equity offering, an incurrence of indebtedness or a change of control) may, at the Company's discretion, be given subject to one or more conditions precedent, including, but not limited to, completion of the transaction. If such redemption is so subject to satisfaction of one or more conditions precedent, such notice shall describe each such condition, and such notice may be rescinded in the event that any or all such conditions shall not have been satisfied or otherwise waived by the Redemption Date. The Company shall notify each applicable Holder of any such rescission as soon as reasonably practicable after the Company determines that it will not be able satisfy or otherwise waive such conditions precedent.

In the case of a partial redemption, selection of the Notes for redemption will be made pro rata, by lot or by such other method as the Trustee in its sole discretion deems appropriate and fair. No Notes of a principal amount of \$2,000 or less will be redeemed in part. If any Note is to be redeemed in part only, the notice of redemption that relates to the Note will state the portion of the principal amount of the Note to be redeemed. A new Note in a principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of the Note will be issued in the name of the Holder of the Note upon surrender for cancellation of the original Note. For so long as the Notes are held by DTC (or another Depositary), the redemption of the Notes shall be done in accordance with the policies and procedures of the Depositary.

Unless the Company defaults in the payment of the redemption price, on and after the applicable Redemption Date, interest will cease to accrue on the Notes or portions of the Notes called for redemption.

The Company and/or its Affiliates may directly or indirectly, at any time and from time to time, acquire all or any part of the outstanding Notes by means other than a redemption, whether pursuant to tender or exchange offer(s), open market purchase(s), negotiated transaction(s), or otherwise, so long as such acquisition does not otherwise violate the terms of the Indenture.

13

Section 2.09. Change of Control.

(a) Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control Triggering Event, unless a notice of redemption has been delivered pursuant to Section 2.08 prior to or within 30 days after such Change of Control Triggering Event stating that all of the Notes will be redeemed as provided for in Section 2.08, each Holder of the Notes shall have the right to require the Company to make an offer (a "Change of Control Offer") to each Holder to repurchase all or any part (equal to \$2,000 or an integral multiple of \$1,000 in excess thereof) of each Holder's outstanding Notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of purchase (the "Change of Control Payment"), subject to the rights of Holders of Notes on the relevant record date to receive interest due on the relevant interest payment date. Within 30 days following any Change of Control Triggering Event, or, at the Company's option, prior to any Change of Control, but after the public announcement of the transaction or transactions that would constitute the Change of Control, the Company shall provide notice to each Holder, with a copy to the Trustee, describing the transaction or transactions that constitute or would constitute the Change of Control Triggering Event and stating: (1) that the Change of Control Offer is being made pursuant to this Section 2.09 and that all Notes properly tendered will be accepted for payment; (2) the purchase price and the purchase date, which, except as contemplated by clause (3) below, shall be no earlier than 30 days and no later than 60 days from the date such notice is provided (the "Change of Control Payment Date"); (3) if mailed prior to the date of the consummation of the Change of Control, that the offer to purchase is conditioned on the Change of Control Triggering Event occurring, with the Change of Control Payment Date to occur no earlier than 30 days and no later than 60 days from the date on which the Change of Control Triggering Event occurs; (4) that any Security not tendered will continue to accrue interest; (5) that, unless the Company defaults in the payment of the Change of Control Payment, all Notes accepted for payment pursuant to the Change of Control Offer shall cease to accrue interest after the Change of Control Payment Date; (6) that Holders electing to have any Notes purchased pursuant to the Change of Control Offer will be required to surrender the Notes, with the form entitled "Option of Holder to Elect Purchase" on the reverse of the Notes completed, to the Paying Agent at the address specified in the notice prior to the close of business on the third Business Day preceding the Change of Control Payment Date; (7) that Holders will be entitled to withdraw their election if the Paying Agent receives, not later than the close of business on the second Business Day preceding the Change of Control Payment Date, a telegram, telex, facsimile transmission or letter setting forth the name of the Holder, the principal amount of Notes delivered for purchase, and a statement that such Holder is withdrawing his election to have the Notes purchased; and (8) that Holders whose Notes are being purchased only in part will be issued new Notes equal in principal amount to the unpurchased portion of the Notes surrendered, which unpurchased portion must be equal to \$2,000 in principal amount or an integral multiple of \$1,000 in excess thereof. The Company shall comply with the requirements of Rule 14e-1 under the Exchange Act and any other securities laws and regulations thereunder to the extent such laws and regulations are applicable in connection with the repurchase of Notes in connection with a Change of Control Triggering Event. To the extent that the provisions of any

securities laws or regulations conflict with this Section 2.09, the Company will comply with the applicable securities laws and regulations and will not be deemed to have breached its obligations under this Section 2.09 by virtue of such compliance.

(b) On the Change of Control Payment Date, the Company shall, to the extent lawful, (1) accept for payment all Notes or portions thereof properly tendered pursuant to the Change of Control Offer, (2) deposit with the Paying Agent an amount equal to the Change of Control Payment in respect of all Notes or portions thereof properly tendered and (3) deliver or cause to be delivered to the Trustee the Notes properly accepted together with an Officers' Certificate stating the aggregate principal amount of Notes or portions thereof being purchased by the Company. The Paying Agent shall promptly deliver to each Holder of Notes properly tendered the Change of Control Payment for such Notes, and the Company shall promptly execute, and the Trustee shall promptly authenticate and deliver (or cause to be transferred by book entry) to each Holder, a new Note equal in principal amount to any unpurchased portion of the Note surrendered by such Holder, if any; provided, that each such new Note shall be in a principal amount of \$2,000 or an integral multiple of \$1,000 in excess thereof. The Company shall publicly announce the results of the Change of Control Offer on or as soon as practicable after the Change of Control Payment Date.

14

The Company will not be required to make a Change of Control Offer upon the occurrence of a Change of Control Triggering Event if a third Person makes the Change of Control Offer in the manner, at the time and otherwise in compliance with the requirements set forth in this Section 2.09 and all other provisions of the Indenture applicable to a Change of Control Offer made by the Company and purchases all Notes properly tendered and not withdrawn under such Change of Control Offer.

Section 2.10. Sinking Fund. The Notes shall not have the benefit of a sinking fund.

Section 2.11. Methods of Receiving Payments on the Notes. If a Holder has given wire transfer instructions to the Company at least 10 Business Days prior to the applicable payment date, the Company will make all payments on such Holder's Notes in accordance with those instructions. Otherwise, payments on the Notes will be made at the office or agency of the Paying Agent and Registrar for the Notes; provided, however, that the Company may, at its option, elect to make interest payments by check mailed to the Holders at their addresses set forth in the Register of Notes; provided, further, that with respect to Notes represented by Global Notes, the Company shall make payments of principal and interest by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the account specified by the Depositary.

Section 2.12. Consolidation, Merger, Conveyance, Transfer or Lease. The Company may not consolidate or combine with or merge with or into or sell, assign (excluding any assignment solely as collateral for security purposes), convey, lease, transfer or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole to any Person or Persons in a single transaction or through a series of related transactions, unless:

- (a) the Company is the successor, continuing or transferee Person or, if the Company is not the successor, continuing or transferee Person, the resulting, surviving or transferee Person (the "surviving entity") is a company organized and existing under the laws of the United States, any State thereof or the District of Columbia that expressly assumes all of the Company's obligations under the Notes and the Indenture pursuant to a supplemental indenture executed and delivered to the Trustee;
 - (b) immediately after giving effect to such transaction or series of related transactions, no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing; and
- (c) the Company or the surviving entity delivers to the Trustee an Officers' Certificate and Opinion of Counsel stating that the transaction or series of related transactions and a supplemental indenture, if any, complies with the Indenture.

15

If any consolidation or merger of the Company or any sale, assignment, conveyance, lease, transfer or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole occurs in accordance with clauses (a)-(c) of this Section 2.12, the surviving entity will succeed to, and be substituted for, and may exercise every right and power of, the Company under the Indenture with the same effect as if such surviving entity had been named as the initial issuer under the Indenture. The Company will (except in the case of a lease) be discharged from all obligations and covenants under the Indenture and the Notes, and may be liquidated and discolved.

For the avoidance of doubt, no Officers' Certificate or Opinion of Counsel will be required under clause (c) of this Section in connection with a consolidation, combination, merger, sale, assignment, conveyance, lease, transfer or other disposition involving only the Company and one or more of its Subsidiaries where the Company is the successor, continuing or transferee Person.

This Section shall apply to the Notes in lieu of Section 4.1 of the Base Indenture, which shall not apply to the Notes.

Section 2.13. <u>Limitation on Liens</u>.

- (a) The Company shall not, and shall not permit any Consolidated Subsidiary to, incur any Debt secured by a Lien on any Principal Property or any shares of Capital Stock of any Consolidated Subsidiary that owns a Principal Property (other than any Subsidiary that is principally engaged in leasing or receivables financing transactions or that holds as all or substantially all of its assets equity interests in one or more such Subsidiaries), in each case, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, without making effective provision that the Notes shall be secured equally and ratably with (or prior to) such secured Debt for so long as such secured Debt remains outstanding, unless, upon giving effect to the incurrence of such Debt and any substantially simultaneous permanent repayment of any secured Debt, the aggregate amount of all Debt secured by a Lien on any Principal Property or on any shares of Capital Stock of any Consolidated Subsidiary that owns a Principal Property (other than any Subsidiary that is principally engaged in leasing or receivables financing transactions or that holds as all or substantially all of its assets equity interests in one or more such Subsidiaries), together with all Attributable Debt of the Company and its Consolidated Subsidiaries in respect of Sale and Leaseback Transactions involving Principal Properties, would not exceed 15% of the Consolidated Total Assets of the Company and the Consolidated Subsidiaries. The aggregate amount of all secured Debt referred to in the preceding sentence shall exclude any then existing secured Debt that has been secured equally and ratably with the Notes.
- (b) The restriction set forth in Section 2.13(a) shall not apply to, and there shall be excluded from all Debt so secured in any computation under the restriction in Section 2.13(a) and under the restriction in Section 2.14, Debt secured by:
 - (i) Liens on any property or shares of Capital Stock existing at the time of acquisition thereof *provided* that any such Lien (1) was in existence prior to the date of such acquisition, (2) was not incurred in contemplation thereof and (3) does not extend to any other property or shares of Capital Stock (other than proceeds);

- (ii) Liens in favor of the Company or a Consolidated Subsidiary;
- (iii) Liens in favor of governmental bodies to secure progress or advance payments pursuant to any contract or provision of any statute;
- (iv) Liens created or incurred in connection with an industrial revenue bond, industrial development bond, pollution control bond or similar financing arrangement between the Company or a Consolidated Subsidiary and any federal, state or municipal government or other governmental body or quasi-governmental agency;
- (v) Liens on property or shares of Capital Stock to secure all or part of the cost of acquiring (including, without limitation, acquisitions through merger or consolidation), substantially repairing or altering, constructing, developing or substantially improving the property, or to secure Debt incurred for any such purpose, to the extent that any such Lien relates solely to the property subject to the Lien, proceeds thereof and agreements relating thereto and that the principal amount of Debt secured by each such Lien was incurred concurrently with, or within 180 days of, such acquisition (including, without limitation, acquisitions through merger or consolidation), repair, alteration, construction (or the commencement of commercial operation of such property, whichever is later), development or improvement and does not exceed the cost to the Company or such Consolidated Subsidiary of the property subject to the Lien, as determined in accordance with GAAP;
 - (vi) Liens on property or shares of Capital Stock of any entity existing at the time such entity becomes a Subsidiary;
- (vii) Liens in favor of a governmental agency to qualify the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary to do business, maintain self-insurance or obtain other benefits, or Liens under workers' compensation laws, unemployment insurance laws, social security laws or regulations or similar legislation;
- (viii) Liens imposed by law, such as laborers' or other employees', carriers', warehousemen's, mechanics', materialmen's, repairmen's, vendors' and other like Liens;
- (ix) Liens arising out of judgments or awards against the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary with respect to which the Company or such Consolidated Subsidiary at the time shall be prosecuting an appeal or proceedings for review;
- (x) Liens for taxes, assessments, governmental charges or levies not yet subject to penalties for nonpayment or the amount or validity of which is being in good faith contested by appropriate action by the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary, as the case may be; and
- (xi) any refinancing, refunding, extension, renewal or replacement, in whole or in part, of any Lien referred to above, to the extent that such refinancing, refunding, extension, renewal or replacement Lien is limited to the same property or shares of Capital Stock that secured the Lien so refinanced, refunded, extended, renewed or replaced (and proceeds thereof and any after-acquired collateral within the scope of the collateral granting clause that was in effect prior to such refinancing, refunding, extension, renewal or replacement) and will not exceed the principal amount of Debt so secured at the time of such refinancing, refunding, extension, renewal or replacement; *provided* that such principal amount of Debt so secured shall continue to be included in the computation in the first paragraph of this covenant and under Section 2.14 to the extent so included at the time of such refinancing, refunding, extension, renewal or replacement.

17

For purposes of this Section 2.13, an "acquisition" of property (including real, personal or intangible property or shares of Capital Stock) shall include any transaction or series of related transactions by which the Company or a Consolidated Subsidiary acquires, directly or indirectly, an interest, or an additional interest (to the extent thereof), in such property, including an acquisition through merger or consolidation with, or an acquisition of an interest in, a Person owning an interest in such property.

Section 2.14. <u>Limitation on Sale and Leaseback Transactions</u>.

- (a) The Company shall not, and shall not permit any of its Consolidated Subsidiaries to, enter into any Sale and Leaseback Transaction with respect to any Principal Property unless:
 - (i) upon giving effect thereto, the aggregate amount of all Attributable Debt of the Company and its Consolidated Subsidiaries with respect to Sale and Leaseback Transactions involving Principal Properties plus the aggregate amount of Debt secured by Liens on any Principal Property or on any shares of Capital Stock of any Consolidated Subsidiary (other than any Subsidiary that is principally engaged in leasing or receivables financing transactions or that holds as all or substantially all of its assets equity interests in one or more such Subsidiaries) incurred without equally and ratably securing the Notes pursuant to Section 2.13 (other than Liens of the types described in Section 2.13(b)(i)-(xi)) would not exceed 15% of the Consolidated Total Assets of the Company and the Consolidated Subsidiaries; or
 - (ii) within 180 days of such Sale and Leaseback Transaction involving a Principal Property, the Company or such Consolidated Subsidiary applies an amount not less than the greater of:
 - (1) the Net Proceeds of the Sale and Leaseback Transaction; and
 - (2) the fair market value of the Principal Property so leased at the time of such transaction;
 - to either (A) the retirement or prepayment, and in either case, the permanent reduction, of Funded Debt of the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary (including that in the case of a revolver or similar arrangement that makes credit available, such commitment is so permanently reduced by such amount); or (B) the purchase of other property that will constitute Principal Property.
- (b) The restriction set forth in Section 2.14(a) shall not apply to any Sale and Leaseback Transaction, and there shall be excluded from Attributable Debt in any computation described in this Section 2.14 and in Section 2.13 with respect to any such transaction:

18

- (i) solely between the Company and a Consolidated Subsidiary or solely between Consolidated Subsidiaries;
- (ii) financed through an industrial revenue bond, industrial development bond, pollution control bond or similar financing arrangement between the Company or a Consolidated Subsidiary and any federal, state or municipal government or other governmental body or quasi- governmental agency;
 - (iii) in which the applicable lease is for a period, including renewal rights, of three years or less;

- (iv) as to which the effective date of any such arrangement or the purchaser's commitment therefor is within 180 days prior or subsequent to the acquisition of the Principal Property (including, without limitation, acquisition by merger or consolidation) or the completion of construction and commencement of operation thereof, whichever is later: or
 - (v) in which the lease payment is created in connection with a project financed with, and such obligation constitutes, a Nonrecourse Obligation.
- Section 2.15. Events of Default. In lieu of Section 6.1 of the Base Indenture (which shall not apply to the Notes), the following are Events of Default with respect to the Notes:
 - (a) the Company defaults in the payment of any installment of interest on any Note when due, continued for 30 days;
- (b) the Company defaults in the payment of principal (or premium, if any) on any Note as and when the same becomes due either upon maturity, by declaration or otherwise;
- (c) the Company defaults in the performance of any of the other covenants or agreements in the Indenture relating to the Notes which is not remedied within a period of 90 days after written notice by the Trustee or Holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Notes then outstanding;
- (d) there occurs an event of default under the terms of any indenture or instrument for borrowed money under which the Company or any Significant Subsidiary has outstanding an aggregate principal amount of at least \$140,000,000, which event of default results in an acceleration of the payment of all or a portion of such indebtedness for money borrowed prior to its maturity, which acceleration is not rescinded or annulled within 30 days after notice of such acceleration; and
 - (e) (i) the Company or any Significant Subsidiary:
 - (A) commences a voluntary case or proceeding under any Bankruptcy Law;
 - (B) consents to the entry of a judgment, decree or order for relief against it in an involuntary case or proceeding under any Bankruptcy Law;

19

- (C) consents to the appointment of a Custodian of it or for any substantial part of its property;
- (D) makes a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors; or
- (E) consents to or acquiesces in the institution of a bankruptcy or an insolvency proceeding against it under any Bankruptcy Law;

or takes any comparable action under any foreign laws relating to insolvency; or

- (f) (ii) a court of competent jurisdiction enters an order or decree under any Bankruptcy Law that:
 - (A) is for relief against the Company or any Significant Subsidiary;
 - (B) appoints a Custodian of the Company or any Significant Subsidiary; or
 - (C) orders the winding up or liquidation of the Company or any Significant Subsidiary;

or any similar relief is granted under any foreign laws and the order, decree or relief remains unstayed and in effect for 90 days.

Section 2.16. <u>Modification and Waiver</u>. In addition to those matters set forth in the Base Indenture, the following modifications or amendments to the Indenture may not be made without the consent of each of the Holders of the Notes so affected:

- (a) cause any Note to become subordinate in right of payment to any other Debt, except to the extent provided in the terms of such Note; or
- (b) impair the right of any Holder of the Notes to require repurchase of the Notes on the terms provided in the Indenture.
- Section 2.17. Original Issue Discount. Section 3.7 of the Base Indenture shall not apply to the Notes.

ARTICLE III

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 3.01. <u>Recitals By Company</u>. The recitals in this Supplemental Indenture are made by the Company only and not by the Trustee, and all of the provisions contained in the Base Indenture in respect of the rights, privileges, immunities, powers and duties of the Trustee shall be applicable in respect of the Notes and of this Supplemental Indenture as fully and with like effect as if set forth herein in full.

Section 3.02. <u>Application to Notes Only</u>. Each and every term and condition contained in this Supplemental Indenture that modifies, amends or supplements the terms and conditions of the Base Indenture shall apply only to the Notes established hereby and not to any other series of Securities established under the Base Indenture.

20

Section 3.03. <u>Benefits</u>. Nothing contained in the Indenture shall or shall be construed to confer upon any Person other than a Holder of the Notes, the Company and the Trustee any right or interest to avail itself of any benefit under any provision of the Indenture or the Notes.

Section 3.04. Effective Date. This Supplemental Indenture shall be effective as of the date first above written upon the execution and delivery hereof by each of the parties hereto.

Section 3.05. <u>Ratification</u>. As supplemented hereby, the Base Indenture is in all respects ratified and confirmed and all the terms, provisions and conditions thereof remain in full force and effect.

Section 3.06. Instructions. The Trustee shall have the right to accept and act upon instructions, including funds transfer instructions ('Instructions') given pursuant to this Indenture and delivered using Electronic Means; provided, however, that the Company shall provide to the Trustee an incumbency certificate listing officers with the authority to provide such Instructions ("Authorized Officers") and containing specimen signatures of such Authorized Officers, which incumbency certificate shall be amended by the Company whenever a person is to be added or deleted from the listing. If the Company elects to give the Trustee Instructions using Electronic Means and the Trustee in its discretion elects to act upon such Instructions, the Trustee's understanding of such Instructions shall be deemed controlling. The Company understands and agrees that the Trustee cannot determine the identity of the actual sender of such Instructions and that the Trustee shall conclusively presume that directions that purport to have been sent by an Authorized Officer listed on the incumbency certificate provided to the Trustee have been sent by such Authorized Officer. The Company shall be responsible for ensuring that only Authorized Officers transmit such Instructions to the Trustee and that the Company and all Authorized Officers are solely responsible to safeguard the use and confidentiality of applicable user and authorization codes, passwords and/or authentication keys upon receipt by the Company. The Trustee shall not be liable for any losses, costs or expenses arising directly or indirectly from the Trustee's reliance upon and compliance with such Instructions notwithstanding such directions conflict or are inconsistent with a subsequent written instruction. The Company agrees: (i) to assume all risks arising out of the use of Electronic Means to submit Instructions to the Trustee, including without limitation the risk of the Trustee acting on unauthorized Instructions, and the risk of interception and misuse by third parties; (ii) that it is fully informed of the protections and risks associated with the various methods of transmitting Instructions to the Trustee and that there may be more secure methods of transmitting Instructions than the method(s) selected by the Company; (iii) that the security procedures (if any) to be followed in connection with its transmission of Instructions provide to it a commercially reasonable degree of protection in light of its particular needs and circumstances; and (iv) to notify the Trustee immediately upon learning of any compromise or unauthorized use of the security procedures.

Section 3.07. Counterparts. This Supplemental Indenture may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, and such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument.

21

Section 3.08. <u>Governing Law; Waiver of Jury Trial.</u> THIS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE AND THE NOTES SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK. EACH OF THE COMPANY AND THE TRUSTEE HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY AND ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE, THE NOTES OR THE TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

[Signatures on Next Page]

22

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Supplemental Indenture to be duly executed as of the date first written above.

CUMMINS INC., an Indiana corporation

By: /s/ Mark Smith
Name: Mark Smith

Title: Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

[Signature Page to the Sixth Supplemental Indenture]

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a national banking association (as successor-in-interest to U.S. Bank National Association), as Trustee

By: /s/ Linda Garcia
Name: Linda Garcia
Title: Vice President

[Signature Page to the Sixth Supplemental Indenture]

EXHIBIT A

FORM OF NOTE

THIS SECURITY IS A SECURITY IN GLOBAL FORM WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE INDENTURE HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AND IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF A DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE THEREOF. THIS SECURITY MAY NOT BE EXCHANGED OR TRANSFERRED EXCEPT AS A WHOLE BY THE DEPOSITARY TO A NOMINEE OF THE DEPOSITARY OR BY THE DEPOSITARY OR ANY SUCH NOMINEE TO A SUCCESSOR DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE OF SUCH SUCCESSOR DEPOSITARY, EXCEPT IN THE LIMITED CIRCUMSTANCES DESCRIBED IN THE INDENTURE.

UNLESS THIS SECURITY IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY, A NEW YORK CORPORATION ("DTC"), TO THE COMPANY OR ITS AGENT FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY SECURITY ISSUED IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC (AND ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO. OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR

OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.

CUMMINS INC. 4.900% SENIOR NOTE DUE 2029

Principal Amount	
CUSIP No.: 231021 AV8	
ISIN No.: US231021AV82	
No.	

\$

A-1

Payments under this Note will be made in the manner contemplated by Section 2.11 of the Supplemental Indenture (as defined below).

Unless the certificate of authentication herein has been duly executed by the Trustee referred to herein by manual signature, this Note shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.

This Note is one of a duly authorized issue of securities of the Company (the "Securities" and each, a "Security") issued under an Indenture dated as of September 16, 2013 (the "Base Indenture"), between the Company and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association (as successor-in-interest to U.S. Bank National Association), as trustee (the "Trustee," which term includes any successor Trustee under the Indenture), as amended, modified and supplemented by a Sixth Supplemental Indenture dated as of February 20, 2024 (the "Supplemental Indenture" and the Base Indenture, as amended, modified and supplemented by the Supplemental Indenture, the 'Indenture'"), between the Company and the Trustee, to which Indenture reference is hereby made for a statement of the respective rights, limitations of rights, duties and immunities thereunder of the Company, the Trustee and the Holders of the Notes and of the terms upon which the Notes are, and are to be, authenticated and delivered. This Note is one of the series designated on the face hereof limited in aggregate principal amount to \$500,000,000, except that the Company may, without the consent of the Holders, "reopen" the series and issue additional Notes that have the same ranking, interest rate, maturity date and other terms as this Note, other than with respect to the date of issuance, the issue price and, in some cases, the first interest payment date.

The Company may, at its option, redeem some or all of the Notes at any time and from time to time as described in Section 2.08 of the Supplemental Indenture. In addition, the Company and/or its Affiliates may directly or indirectly, at any time and from time to time, acquire all or any part of the outstanding Notes by means other than a redemption, whether pursuant to tender or exchange offer(s), open market purchase(s), negotiated transaction(s), or otherwise, so long as such acquisition does not otherwise violate the terms of the Indenture.

Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control Triggering Event, unless a notice of redemption has been delivered pursuant to Section 2.08 of the Supplemental Indenture prior to or within 30 days after such Change of Control Triggering Event stating that all of the Notes will be redeemed as provided for in Section 2.08 of the Supplemental Indenture, each Holder of the Notes will have the right to require the Company to make an offer to each Holder to repurchase all or any part of each Holder's Notes pursuant to a Change of Control Offer at a purchase price equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of purchase, subject to the rights of Holders of Notes on the relevant record date to receive interest due on the relevant interest payment date. Additional terms and conditions relating to Change of Control Offers are set forth in the Indenture.

A-2

The Company shall have no obligation to redeem or purchase the Notes pursuant to any sinking fund or analogous provision.

The Indenture contains certain covenants that, among other things, limit the ability of the Company and its Consolidated Subsidiaries to consolidate or combine with, merge or sell, assign, convey, lease, transfer or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of their assets, to incur Debt secured by a Lien or to enter into Sale and Leaseback Transactions, in each case in the manner and to the extent set forth in the Indenture.

If an Event of Default with respect to the Notes shall have occurred and be continuing, the principal of all the Notes may be declared due and payable in the manner and with the effect provided in the Indenture.

The Company and the Trustee may enter into an indenture or indentures supplemental to the Indenture without notice to or the consent of the Holders for limited purposes specified in the Indenture. With the consent of the Holders of greater than 50% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Securities of each series affected by such supplemental indenture, the Company and the Trustee may enter into an indenture or indentures supplemental to the Indenture for the purpose of adding any provisions to or changing the provisions of the Indenture or any supplement thereto or of modifying in any manner the rights of the Holders of the Securities of each such affected series; provided, however, that no such supplemental indenture shall be entered into for any of the purposes described in Section 9.2 of the Base Indenture or Section 2.16 of the Supplemental Indenture, without the consent of the Holder of each outstanding Security of the applicable series affected thereby.

The Holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding Notes may on behalf of the Holders of all the Notes waive compliance in a particular instance by the Company with any provision of the Indenture with respect to the Notes, as provided for in the Indenture.

Holders of Notes may not enforce their rights pursuant to the Indenture or the Notes except as provided in the Indenture. No reference herein to the Indenture and no provision of this Note or of the Indenture shall alter or impair the obligation of the Company, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of (and premium, if any) and interest on this Note at the times, place and rate, and in the coin or currency, herein prescribed.

The Notes are issuable in registered form without coupons in minimum denominations of U.S. \$2,000 and any integral multiple of U.S.\$1,000 in excess thereof. As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, Notes are exchangeable for a like aggregate principal amount of Notes that are of other authorized denominations.

A-3

Notes to be exchanged shall be surrendered at any office or agency maintained by the Company for such purpose, and the Company shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor the Notes which the Holder making the exchange shall be entitled to receive. Upon due presentment for registration of transfer of any Note at any such office or agency, the Company shall execute and register and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver in the name of the transferee or transferees a new Note for an equal aggregate amount. Registration or registration of transfer of any Note by the Registrar (initially the Trustee) in the registry books maintained by such Registrar, and delivery of such Note, duly authenticated, shall be deemed to complete the registration or registration of transfer of such Note.

No service charge shall be made for any exchange or registration of transfer, but the Company may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection therewith. Prior to due presentment of a Note for registration of transfer, the Company, the Trustee and any agent of the Company or the Trustee may treat the Person in whose name a Note is registered as the owner for all purposes whether or not such Note be overdue, and neither the Company, the Trustee nor any such agent shall be affected by notice to the contrary.

This Note is in the form of a Global Note as provided in the Indenture. If at any time the Depositary notifies the Company that it is unwilling or unable to continue as Depositary for this Note or if at any time the Depositary for this Note shall no longer be eligible or in good standing under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or other applicable statute or regulation, the Company shall appoint a successor Depositary with respect to this Note. If a successor Depositary for this Note is not appointed by the Company within 90 days after the Company receives notice or becomes aware of such ineligibility, the Company will issue Notes in definitive form in exchange for this Global Note representing Notes in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of this Global Note.

No recourse under or upon any obligation, covenant or agreement contained in the Indenture, in any Note, or because of any indebtedness evidenced thereby, shall be had against any incorporator or other Person acting in a similar capacity, as such, or against any past, present or future stockholder, officer, director or other Person acting in a similar capacity, as such, of the Company or of any successor, either directly or through the Company or any successor, under any rule of law, statute or constitutional provision or by the enforcement of any assessment or by any legal or equitable proceeding or otherwise, all such liability being expressly waived and released by the acceptance of the Notes by the Holders thereof and as part of the consideration for the issue of the Notes.

The Notes are subject to defeasance at the option of the Company as provided in the Indenture.

All terms used in this Note which are defined in the Indenture shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Indenture.

A-4

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this instrument to be duly executed.

Dated: February 20, 2024

Cummins Inc.

By:

Name:

Title:

[Signature Page to 2029 Global Note]

This is one of the Notes of the series designated therein referred to in the within-mentioned Indenture.

Dated: February 20, 2024

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,

a national banking association (as successor-in-interest to U.S. Bank National Association), as Trustee

Ву: ____

Authorized Officer

[Signature Page to 2029 Global Note]

TEN COM TEN ENT JT TEN		UNIF GIFT MIN ACT- es t of survivorship and not as tenants	Custodian (Minor) under Uniform Gifts to Minors Act
	in common		(State)
		Additional abbreviations may also be used although not in the ab	pove list.
		ASSIGNMENT FORM	
FOR VALUE I	RECEIVED, the undersigned be	ereby sell(s), assign(s) and transfer(s) unto:	
OK VALUE	RECEIVED, the undersigned he	ereby seri(s), assign(s) and transfer(s) unto.	
PLEASE INSE	ERT SOCIAL SECURITY OR (OTHER IDENTIFYING NUMBER OF ASSIGNEE	
PLEASE PRIN	IT OR TYPEWRITE NAME A	ND ADDRESS INCLUDING POSTAL ZIP CODE OF ASSIGNEE	
the within Secu	urity and all rights thereunder, h	nereby irrevocably constituting and appointing attorney	to transfer said Security on the books of the Company, with
_	ubstitution in the premises.		
Dated:			
Signature			
		IGNMENT MUST CORRESPOND WITH THE NAME AS WRITTI ERATION OR ENLARGEMENT OR ANY CHANGE WHATEVER	
		A-8	
		A C	
		OPTION OF HOLDER TO ELECT PURCHASE	
•		e purchased by the Company pursuant to Section 2.09 of the Supplement	ntal Indenture, check the box below:
	section 2.09		
If you have purchased		rt of the Note purchased by the Company pursuant to Section 2.09 of	f the Supplemental Indenture, state the amount you elect to
\$			
Date:			
Your Signature	::		
(Sign exactly a	s your name appears on the face	e of this Note)	
Γax Identificat	ion No:	-	

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this instrument, shall be construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws

SCHEDULE OF INCREASES AND DECREASES

The following increases and decreases to this Global Note have been made:

Date of Increase or Decrease	Amount of Decrease in Principal Amount of this Global Note	Amount of Increase in Principal Amount of this Global Note	Principal Amount of this Global Note Following Such Decrease or Increase	Signature of Authorized Officer of Trustee or Note Custodian

CUMMINS INC.

and

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,

as Trustee

SEVENTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE

Dated as of February 20, 2024

to Indenture dated as of September 16, 2013

5.150% Senior Notes due 2034

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article I DEFINITIONS	PAGE 1
Section 1.01. Definitions	1
Article II ESTABLISHMENT OF SECURITIES	7
Section 2.01. Title of Securities	7
Section 2.02. Aggregate Principal Amount of Notes; Additional Notes	7
Section 2.03. Authentication and Delivery of the Notes	8
Section 2.04. Payment of Principal and Interest on the Notes; Form of the Notes; Global Notes	9
Section 2.05. Registration, Transfer and Exchange	9
Section 2.06. Legends	12
Section 2.07. Paying Agent; Custodian; Place of Payment	12
Section 2.08. Optional Redemption; Open Market Purchases, etc.	12
Section 2.09. Change of Control	14
Section 2.10. Sinking Fund	15
Section 2.11. Methods of Receiving Payments on the Notes	15
Section 2.12. Consolidation, Merger, Conveyance, Transfer or Lease Section 2.13. Limitation on Liens	15 16
Section 2.14. Limitation on Sale and Leaseback Transactions	18
Section 2.15. Events of Default	19
Section 2.16. Modification and Waiver	20
Section 2.17. Original Issue Discount	20
Section 2.17. Original issue Discount	20
Article III MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	20
Section 3.01. Recitals By Company	20
Section 3.02. Application to Notes Only	20
Section 3.03. Benefits	21
Section 3.04. Effective Date	21
Section 3.05. Ratification	21
Section 3.06. Instructions	21
Section 3.07. Counterparts	21
Section 3.08. Governing Law; Waiver of Jury Trial	22
EXHIBIT A - FORM OF NOTE	

THIS SEVENTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE (this "Supplemental Indenture"), dated as of February 20, 2024, is entered into by and between CUMMINS INC., an Indiana corporation (along with any successor thereto, the "Company"), and U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a national banking association (as successor-in-interest to U.S. Bank National Association), as Trustee (along with any successor thereto, the "Trustee").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Company and the Trustee entered into that certain Indenture, dated as of September 16, 2013 (the <u>Base Indenture</u>"), which provides for the issuance by the Company from time to time of Securities, in one or more series as provided therein;

WHEREAS, the Company has determined to issue a series of Securities, as provided herein;

WHEREAS, Section 2.1 of the Base Indenture provides for the Company and the Trustee to enter into an indenture supplemental to the Base Indenture to establish the

form or terms of Securities of any series as provided by Sections 2.1 and 2.3 of the Base Indenture and to amend, modify or supplement the Base Indenture as it applies to such series; and

WHEREAS, all the conditions and requirements necessary to make this Supplemental Indenture, when duly executed and delivered, a valid and binding agreement in accordance with its terms and for the purposes herein expressed, have been performed and fulfilled.

NOW, THEREFORE:

In consideration of the agreements and obligations set forth herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

Section 1.01. Definitions.

For all purposes of this Supplemental Indenture, except as otherwise expressly provided for or unless the context otherwise requires:

- (a) Capitalized terms defined in the Base Indenture and used but not defined herein shall have the respective meanings given them in the Base Indenture;
- (b) All references herein to Articles and Sections, unless otherwise specified, refer to the corresponding Articles and Sections of this Supplemental Indenture; and
- (c) The following terms shall have the indicated definitions and if the definition of any of the following terms differs from its respective definition set forth in the Base Indenture, the definition set forth herein shall control:

"Attributable Debt" in respect of a Sale and Leaseback Transaction means, on the date of any determination, the present value of the obligation of the lessee for net rental payments during the remaining term of the lease included in such Sale and Leaseback Transaction, including any period for which such lease has been extended or may, at the option of the lessor, be extended. Such present value shall be calculated using a discount rate equal to the interest rate set forth or implicit in the terms of such lease, determined in accordance with GAAP, or, if not practicable to determine such rate, the weighted average interest rate per annum borne by the Notes on such date of determination, in either case compounded semi-annually. "Net rental payments" means the total amount of rent payable by the lessee after excluding amounts required to be paid on account of maintenance and repairs, insurance, taxes, assessments, water rates and similar charges.

"Authorized Officers" has the meaning specified in Section 3.06.

"Base Indenture" has the meaning specified in the recitals hereto.

"Below Investment Grade Rating Event" means that the Notes cease to be rated with an Investment Grade Rating by at least two of the three Rating Agencies on any date during the period (the "Trigger Period") commencing on the date of the first public announcement by the Company of any Change of Control (or pending Change of Control) and ending 60 days following consummation of such Change of Control (which Trigger Period shall be extended following consummation of a Change of Control for so long as any of the Rating Agencies has publicly announced that it is considering a possible ratings downgrade); provided, however, that a Below Investment Grade Rating Event otherwise arising by virtue of particular reductions in rating shall not be deemed a Below Investment Grade Rating Event for purposes of the definition of Change of Control Triggering Event) if the Rating Agencies making the reduction in rating to which this definition would otherwise apply do not announce or publicly confirm or inform the Trustee in writing at the Company's request that the reduction was the result, in whole or in part, of any event or circumstance comprised of, or arising as a result of, or in respect of, the applicable Change of Control (whether or not the applicable Change of Control shall have occurred at the time of the Below Investment Grade Rating Event).

"Business Day" means any day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, that is not a day on which the Trustee or banking institutions in New York, New York are authorized or obligated by law or executive order to close.

"Certificated Notes" has the meaning specified in Section 2.05(e).

"Change of Control" means the occurrence of any of the following:

(1) the direct or indirect sale, lease, transfer, exchange, conveyance or other disposition (other than by way of merger or consolidation or as a pledge for security purposes only), in one or a series of related transactions, of all or substantially all of the properties or assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole to any "person" (as that term is used in Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act) other than the Company or one of its Subsidiaries;

2

- (2) the consummation of any transaction (including, without limitation, any merger or consolidation) the result of which is that any "person" (as defined above) becomes the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of more than 50% of the Company's then outstanding Voting Stock, measured by voting power rather than number of shares; or
 - (3) the approval by the holders of the Company's common stock of a plan for the Company's liquidation or dissolution;

other than, in the case of clause (1) or (3) above, any transaction or series of related transactions that complies with Section 2.12.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a transaction will not be deemed to involve a Change of Control under clause (2) of this definition if: (a) the Company becomes a direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of a holding company and (b) either (i) the direct or indirect holders of the Voting Stock of such holding company immediately following that transaction are substantially the same as the holders of the Company's Voting Stock immediately prior to that transaction, or (ii) immediately following that transaction, no "person" (as that term is used in Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act), other than a holding company satisfying the requirements of this sentence, is the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of more than 50% of the Voting Stock of such holding company.

"Change of Control Offer" has the meaning specified in Section 2.09(a).

- "Change of Control Payment" has the meaning specified in Section 2.09(a).
- "Change of Control Payment Date" has the meaning specified in Section 2.09(a).
- "Change of Control Triggering Event" means the occurrence of both a Change of Control and a Below Investment Grade Rating Event; provided that no Change of Control Triggering Event will be deemed to have occurred in connection with any particular Change of Control unless and until such Change of Control has actually been consummated.
 - "Company" has the meaning specified in the recitals hereto.
- "Consolidated Subsidiary" means a Subsidiary of the Company whose financial statements are consolidated with the Company's financial statements in accordance with GAAP.
- "Consolidated Total Assets" means, at any time of determination, the total assets of the Company and its Consolidated Subsidiaries, as shown on the consolidated balance sheet in the Company's then latest quarterly or annual report filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, prepared in accordance with GAAP.
- "Debt" means, at any time, (1) all obligations of the Company and all obligations of any Consolidated Subsidiary, to the extent such obligations would appear as a liability upon the consolidated balance sheet of the Company and the Consolidated Subsidiaries, in accordance with GAAP, (a) for borrowed money, (b) evidenced by bonds, debentures, notes or other similar instruments and (c) in respect of drawn and unreimbursed amounts under letters of credit supporting any Debt of others, and (2) all guarantees by the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary of Debt of others.

3

- "Depositary" means, with respect to the Notes issuable or issued in whole or in part in the form of one or more Global Notes, a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act that is appointed to act as Depositary for such Notes as contemplated by Section 2.04(d) or Section 2.05, as the case may be.
- "Electronic Means" means the following communications methods: e-mail as a portable document format ("pdf") or other replicating image attached to an e-mail, facsimile transmission, secure electronic transmission containing applicable authorization codes, passwords and/or authentication keys issued by the Trustee, or another method or system specified by the Trustee as available for use in connection with its services hereunder.
 - "Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
 - "Fitch" means Fitch Ratings Inc. and its successors.
- "Funded Debt" means (1) all Debt for money borrowed having a maturity of more than 12 months from the date as of which the determination is made or having a maturity of 12 months or less but by its terms being renewable or extendible beyond 12 months from such date at the option of the borrower (excluding any amount thereof included in current liabilities) and (2) all rental obligations payable more than 12 months from such date under leases that are capitalized in accordance with GAAP (such rental obligations to be included as Funded Debt at the amount so capitalized).
 - "GAAP" means generally accepted accounting principles as in effect from time to time in the United States of America.
 - "Global Note" has the meaning specified in Section 2.04(d).
- "Incur" means to, directly or indirectly, issue, assume, guaranty, incur, become directly or indirectly liable with respect to (including as a result of an acquisition (by way of merger, consolidation or otherwise)), or otherwise become responsible for, contingently or otherwise.
 - "Indenture" means the Base Indenture, as amended, modified and supplemented by this Supplemental Indenture.
 - "Instructions" has the meaning specified in Section 3.06.
- "Investment Grade Rating" means a rating equal to or higher than Baa3 (or the equivalent) by Moody's; a rating equal to or higher than BBB- (or the equivalent) by S&P; a rating equal to or higher than BBB- (or the equivalent) by Fitch; or the equivalent investment grade credit rating from any replacement Rating Agency selected by the Company.

4

- "Issue Date" means the date of the initial issuance of the Notes, which shall be the date hereof.
- "Lien" means any mortgage, pledge, hypothecation, charge, encumbrance, security interest, statutory or other lien, or other security or similar agreement or similar preferential arrangement of any kind or nature whatsoever, including any conditional sale or other title retention agreement having substantially the same economic effect as any of these.
 - "Moody's" means Moody's Investors Service, Inc. and its successors.
- "Net Proceeds" means, with respect to a Sale and Leaseback Transaction, the aggregate amount of cash or cash equivalents received by the Company or a Consolidated Subsidiary, less the sum of all payments, fees, commissions and expenses incurred in connection with such transaction, and less the amount (estimated reasonably and in good faith by the Company) of income, franchise, sales and other applicable taxes required to be paid by the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary in connection with such transaction in the taxable year that such transaction is consummated or in the two immediately succeeding taxable years, the computation of which shall take into account the reduction in tax liability resulting from any available operating losses and net operating loss carryovers, tax credits and tax credit carryforwards, and similar tax attributes.
- "Nonrecourse Obligation" means indebtedness or lease payment obligations substantially related to (i) the acquisition of assets not previously owned by the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary or (ii) the financing of a project involving the development or expansion of the Company's or any Consolidated Subsidiary's properties, in either case, as to which the obligee with respect to such indebtedness or obligation has no recourse to the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary or the Company's or any Consolidated Subsidiary's assets other than the assets which were acquired with the proceeds of such transaction or the project financed with the proceeds of such transaction (and the proceeds thereof), other than recourse for fraud, misrepresentation, misapplication of cash, waste, environmental claims and liabilities, prohibited transfers, violations of single purpose entity covenants and other circumstances customarily excluded by institutional lenders from exculpation provisions and/or included in separate guaranty or

indemnification agreements in non-recourse financings.

"Notes" has the meaning specified in Section 2.01.

"Par Call Date" has the meaning specified in Section 2.08.

"Participants" means members of, or participants in, the Depositary.

"Principal Property" means any manufacturing plant, warehouse or other similar facility or any parcel of real estate or group of contiguous parcels of real estate owned by the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary the gross book value of which on the date as of which the determination is being made exceeds 1% of Consolidated Total Assets and that is located in the United States of America, Canada or the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, other than any such manufacturing plant, warehouse or other similar facility or parcel or group of contiguous parcels of real estate that in the opinion of the Company's Board of Directors is not of material importance to the business conducted by the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole.

5

"Rating Agency" means (1) each of Moody's, S&P and Fitch; and (2) if any of Moody's, S&P or Fitch ceases to rate the Notes or fails to make a rating of the Notes publicly available for reasons outside of the Company's control, a "nationally recognized statistical rating organization" within the meaning of Section 3(a)(62) of the Exchange Act selected by the Company (as certified by a resolution of the Company's Board of Directors) as a replacement agency for Moody's, S&P and/or Fitch, as the case may be; provided that the Company shall give notice of any such replacement to the Trustee.

"Register of Notes" has the meaning specified in Section 2.05.

"Registrar" has the meaning specified in Section 2.05.

"S&P" means S&P Global Ratings, a division of S&P Global Inc., and its successors.

"Sale and Leaseback Transaction" means any arrangement whereby the Company or any of its Subsidiaries have sold or transferred, or will sell or transfer, property and have or will take back a lease pursuant to which the rental payments are calculated to amortize the purchase price of the property substantially over the useful life of such property.

"Significant Subsidiary" means any of the Company's Subsidiaries that would be a "Significant Subsidiary" within the meaning of Rule 1-02 under Regulation S-X promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission.

"Subsidiary" means any corporation, partnership or other legal entity (a) the accounts of which are consolidated with the Company's in accordance with GAAP and (b) of which, in the case of a corporation, partnership or other legal entity, more than 50% of the outstanding Voting Stock is owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company or by one or more other Subsidiaries.

"Supplemental Indenture" has the meaning specified in the recitals hereto.

"Treasury Rate" means, with respect to any Redemption Date, the yield determined by the Company in accordance with the following two paragraphs.

The Treasury Rate shall be determined by the Company after 4:15 p.m., New York City time (or after such time as yields on U.S. government securities are posted daily by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System), on the third Business Day preceding the Redemption Date based upon the yield or yields for the most recent day that appear after such time on such day in the most recent statistical release published by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System designated as "Selected Interest Rates (Daily) – H.15" (or any successor designation or publication) ("H.15") under the caption "U.S. government securities—Treasury constant maturities—Nominal" (or any successor caption or heading) ("H.15 TCM"). In determining the Treasury Rate, the Company shall select, as applicable: (1) the yield for the Treasury constant maturity on H.15 exactly equal to the period from the Redemption Date to the Par Call Date (the "Remaining Life"); or (2) if there is no such Treasury constant maturity on H.15 immediately shorter than and one yield corresponding to the Treasury constant maturity on H.15 immediately longer than the Remaining Life – and shall interpolate to the Par Call Date on a straight-line basis (using the actual number of days) using such yields and rounding the result to three decimal places; or (3) if there is no such Treasury constant maturity on H.15 shorter than or longer than the Remaining Life, the yield for the single Treasury constant maturity on H.15 closest to the Remaining Life. For purposes of this paragraph, the applicable Treasury constant maturity or maturities on H.15 shall be deemed to have a maturity date equal to the relevant number of months or years, as applicable, of such Treasury constant maturity from the redemption date.

6

If on the third Business Day preceding the Redemption Date, H.15 TCM is no longer published, the Company shall calculate the Treasury Rate based on the rate per annum equal to the semi-annual equivalent yield to maturity at 11:00 a.m., New York City time, on the second Business Day preceding such redemption date of the United States Treasury security maturing on, or with a maturity that is closest to, the Par Call Date, as applicable. If there is no United States Treasury security maturing on the Par Call Date but there are two or more United States Treasury securities with a maturity date equally distant from the Par Call Date, one with a maturity date preceding the Par Call Date and one with a maturity date following the Par Call Date, the Company shall select the United States Treasury securities meting the Par Call Date. If there are two or more United States Treasury securities maturing on the Par Call Date or two or more United States Treasury securities the criteria of the preceding sentence, the Company shall select from among these two or more United States Treasury securities the United States Treasury security that is trading closest to par based upon the average of the bid and asked prices for such United States Treasury securities at 11:00 a.m., New York City time. In determining the Treasury Rate in accordance with the terms of this paragraph, the semi-annual yield to maturity of the applicable United States Treasury security, and rounded to three decimal places.

"Trustee" has the meaning specified in the recitals hereto.

"Voting Stock" of any specified Person as of any date means the Capital Stock of such Person that is at the time entitled to vote generally in the election of the Board of Directors of such Person.

The following provisions of this Article 2 are made pursuant to Section 2.1 of the Base Indenture in order to establish and set forth the terms of a series of Securities. In the event that any of the following terms conflict with those set forth in the Base Indenture, the terms set forth herein shall control.

Section 2.01. Title of Securities. There is hereby established a series of Securities designated the "5.150 % Senior Notes due 2034" (the "Notes").

Section 2.02. Aggregate Principal Amount of Notes; Additional Notes.

(a) There are initially to be authenticated and delivered \$750,00,000 aggregate principal amount of the Notes.

7

- (b) At any time and from time to time after the Issue Date there may be authenticated and delivered an unlimited principal amount of additional Notes without the consent of any Holder of the Notes. Any such additional Notes will have the same ranking, interest rate, maturity date, redemption rights and other terms as any outstanding Notes, other than with respect to the date of issuance, the issue price and, in some cases, the first interest payment date. All Notes issued hereunder, including any additional Notes, will constitute a single series of Securities under the Indenture; provided, however, that any such additional Notes that are not fungible with the Notes issued on the Issue Date for United States federal income tax purposes shall be issued with CUSIP and ISIN numbers different from the CUSIP and ISIN numbers assigned to the Notes issued on the Issue Date.
- (c) Nothing contained in this Section 2.02 or elsewhere in the Indenture, or in the Notes, is intended to or shall limit execution by the Company or authentication or delivery by the Trustee of Notes under the circumstances contemplated by Sections 2.8, 2.9, 2.13 and 9.5 of the Base Indenture.

Section 2.03. Authentication and Delivery of the Notes.

- (a) At any time and from time to time after the execution and delivery of this Supplemental Indenture, the Company may deliver Notes executed by the Company to the Trustee for authentication, and the Trustee shall thereupon authenticate and deliver such Notes to or upon the written order of the Company, signed by one or more Officers of the Company, without further action by the Company. In authenticating such Notes and accepting the additional responsibilities under the Indenture in relation to such Notes, the Trustee shall be entitled to receive and (subject to Section 7.1 of the Base Indenture) shall be fully protected in relying upon:
 - (i) an Officers' Certificate prepared in accordance with Section 11.5 of the Base Indenture; and
 - (ii) an Opinion of Counsel prepared in accordance with Section 11.5 of the Base Indenture, which shall state that the Base Indenture, this Supplemental Indenture and the Notes have been duly authorized and, when authenticated and delivered by the Trustee and issued by the Company in the manner and subject to any conditions specified in such Opinion of Counsel, will constitute valid and binding obligations of the Company, enforceable in accordance with their terms, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent transfer, reorganization, moratorium and other laws of general applicability relating to or affecting creditors' rights and to general equitable principles, regardless of whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law.
- (b) The Trustee shall have the right to decline to authenticate and deliver any Notes under this Section if the Trustee, being advised by counsel, determined that such action may not lawfully be taken by the Company or if the issue of such Notes pursuant to the Indenture will affect the Trustee's own rights, duties or immunities under the Indenture in a manner not reasonably acceptable to the Trustee.

8

(c) Notwithstanding anything in the Indenture to the contrary, authentication and execution of any Notes by counterpart shall satisfy the requirements of the Indenture with respect to the authentication and execution of such Notes.

Section 2.04. Payment of Principal and Interest on the Notes; Form of the Notes; Global Notes.

- (a) The Notes will mature on February 20, 2034 and will bear interest at the rate of 5.150% per annum. Interest on the Notes will be payable semi-annually, in cash, in arrears on February 20 and August 20 of each year, commencing on August 20, 2024, to the Holders thereof at the close of business on the immediately preceding February 5 and August 5 of each year. Interest on the Notes will accrue from and including the most recent date to which interest has been paid or, if no interest has been paid, from and including the date of issuance of the Notes. Interest on the Notes will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year comprised of twelve 30-day months.
 - (b) The Notes shall be issued in minimum denominations of \$2,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 in excess thereof.
- (c) The Notes shall be issued in registered form without coupons, substantially in the form of Exhibit A attached hereto. The form of the Trustee's certificate of authentication for the Notes shall be in substantially the form set forth in the form of Note attached hereto as Exhibit A. Each Note shall be dated the date of authentication thereof
- (d) The entire initially issued principal amount of the Notes shall initially be evidenced by one or more Global Securities (collectively, the <u>Global Notes</u>) registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC, or another nominee of DTC. The Company initially appoints DTC to act as Depositary with respect to the Global Notes and the Trustee to act as custodian with respect to the Global Notes. So long as the Depositary, or its nominee, is the registered Holder and owner of the Global Notes, the Depositary or such nominee, as the case may be, will be considered the sole owner and Holder of the Notes for all purposes under the Indenture.

Section 2.05. Registration, Transfer and Exchange.

(a) <u>Registrar; Register of Notes.</u> The Company shall cause to be kept at the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee a register of Notes (the register maintained in such office and in any other office or agency of the Company in a place of payment being herein sometimes collectively referred to as the "<u>Register of Notes</u>") in which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Company shall provide for the registration of Notes and of transfers of Notes. The Trustee is hereby appointed "<u>Registrar</u>" for the purpose of registering the Notes and transfers of the Notes as herein provided. The Company may appoint one or more co-Registrars with respect to the Notes and the term "<u>Registrar</u>" includes any co-Registrar. The Registrar shall retain copies of all letters, notices and other written communications received pursuant to Section 2.8 of the Base Indenture or this Section 2.05. The Company shall have the right to inspect and make copies of all such letters, notices or other written communications at any reasonable time upon the giving of reasonable written notice to the Registrar.

(b) No Obligation of the Trustee. The Trustee shall have no obligation or duty to monitor, determine or inquire as to compliance with any restrictions on transfer imposed under the Indenture or under applicable law with respect to any transfer of any interest in any Note (including any transfers between or among Participants or beneficial owners of interests in any Global Note) other than to require delivery of such certificates and other documentation or evidence as are expressly required by, and to do so if and when expressly required by the terms of, the Indenture, and to examine the same to determine substantial compliance as to form with the express requirements hereof. Neither the Trustee nor any agent of the Company or the Trustee shall have any responsibility for the actions or omissions of the Depositary or the accuracy of the books and records of the Depositary.

(c) Transfers of Notes and Interests in Notes

- (i) The Registrar shall not be required (A) to issue, authenticate, register the transfer of or exchange Notes for a period of 15 days before the mailing of a notice of redemption of such Notes to be redeemed or (B) to register the transfer of or exchange of any Notes so selected for redemption in whole or in part.
- (ii) All Notes issued upon any transfer or exchange of Notes shall be valid and binding obligations of the Company, evidencing the same debt, and entitled to the same benefits under the Indenture, as the Notes surrendered upon such transfer or exchange.
- (iii) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 2.05, unless and until it is exchanged in whole or in part for Certificated Notes, the Global Notes may not be transferred except as a whole by the Depositary to a nominee of such Depositary, or by a nominee of such Depositary to such Depositary or another nominee of such Depositary, or by such Depositary or any such nominee to a successor Depositary or a nominee of such successor Depositary.
- (iv) Ownership of interests in the Global Notes will be shown on, and the transfer of those ownership interests will be effected through, records maintained by the Depositary (with respect to Participants' interests) and such Participants (with respect to the owners of beneficial interests in such Global Notes).
- (d) Cancellation or Adjustment of Global Notes. At such time as all beneficial interests in a particular Global Note have been exchanged for Certificated Notes or a particular Global Note has been redeemed, repurchased or canceled in whole and not in part, each such Global Note shall be returned to or retained and canceled by the Trustee. At any time prior to such cancellation, if any beneficial interest in a Global Note is exchanged for or transferred to a Person who shall take delivery thereof in the form of a beneficial interest in another Global Note or for Certificated Notes, the principal amount of Notes represented by such Global Note shall be reduced accordingly and an endorsement shall be made on the Schedule of Increases and Decreases to such Global Note by the Trustee or by the Depositary at the direction of the Trustee to reflect such reduction; and if the beneficial interest is being exchanged for or transferred to a Person who shall take delivery thereof in the form of a beneficial interest in another Global Note, such other Global Note shall be increased accordingly and an endorsement shall be made on the Schedule of Increases and Decreases to such Global Note by the Trustee or by the Depositary at the direction of the Trustee to reflect such increase.

10

(e) Certificated Notes.

- (i) If at any time the Depositary (A) notifies the Company that it is unwilling or unable to continue as Depositary for the Global Notes and the Depositary fails to appoint a successor Depositary or (B) ceases to be a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act, then the Company shall appoint a successor Depositary eligible under applicable law with respect to such Global Notes. If a successor Depositary eligible to be a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act for such Global Notes is not appointed by the Company within 90 days after the date Company receives such notice or becomes aware of the unwillingness, inability of ineligibility of the Depositary set forth in clauses (A) and (B) above, the Company will execute, and the Trustee, upon receipt of a Company Order for the authentication and delivery of definitive Notes of such series and tenor ("Certificated Notes"), will authenticate and deliver such Certificated Notes, in any authorized denominations, in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of such Global Notes.
- (ii) In addition, if the Company, at its option, notifies the Trustee in writing that it elects to cause the issuance of the Certificated Notes, then the Company shall execute, and the Trustee, upon receipt of a Company Order for the authentication and delivery of Certificated Notes, will authenticate and deliver, Certificated Notes in any authorized denominations, in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of the Global Notes, in exchange for such Global Notes.
- (iii) Any time the Notes are to be authenticated and delivered in the form of Certificated Notes, the Company agrees to supply the Trustee with a reasonable supply of Certificated Notes without the legend required by Section 2.06(a) and the Trustee agrees to hold such Notes in safekeeping until authenticated and delivered pursuant to the terms of the Indenture.
- (iv) The Depositary may surrender one or more Global Notes in exchange in whole or in part for Certificated Notes as provided herein on such terms as are acceptable to the Company and such Depositary. Thereupon, the Company shall execute, and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver, without service charge,
 - (A) to the Person specified by such Depositary new Notes of the same series and tenor, of any authorized denominations as requested by such Person, in an aggregate principal amount equal to and in exchange for such Person's beneficial interest in the Global Note; and
 - (B) to such Depositary a new Global Note in a denomination equal to the difference, if any, between the principal amount of the surrendered Global Note and the aggregate principal amount of Notes authenticated and delivered pursuant to clause (A) above.
- (v) Notes issued in exchange for a Global Note pursuant to this Section 2.05 shall be registered in such names and in such authorized denominations as the Depositary for such Global Note, pursuant to instructions from its Participants or otherwise, shall instruct the Trustee or an agent of the Company or the Trustee. The Trustee or such agent shall deliver such Notes to or as directed by the Persons in whose names such Notes are so registered.

11

Section 2.06. Legends.

Each Global Note shall bear a legend in substantially the following form:

THIS SECURITY IS A SECURITY IN GLOBAL FORM WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE INDENTURE HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AND IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF A DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE THEREOF. THIS SECURITY MAY NOT BE EXCHANGED OR TRANSFERRED EXCEPT AS A WHOLE BY THE DEPOSITARY TO A NOMINEE OF THE DEPOSITARY OR BY THE DEPOSITARY OR ANY SUCH NOMINEE TO A SUCCESSOR DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE OF SUCH SUCCESSOR DEPOSITARY, EXCEPT IN THE LIMITED CIRCUMSTANCES DESCRIBED IN THE INDENTURE.

CORPORATION ("DTC"), TO THE COMPANY OR ITS AGENT FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY SECURITY ISSUED IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC (AND ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO. OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.

Section 2.07. Paying Agent; Custodian; Place of Payment. The Company initially appoints the Trustee to act as the Paying Agent with respect to the Notes. The Company may appoint one or more additional Paying Agents, and the term "Paying Agent" includes any additional Paying Agent. The Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee shall be the initial place of payment. The office of any additional Paying Agent shall also be a place of payment.

Section 2.08. Optional Redemption; Open Market Purchases, etc. Prior to November 20, 2033 (three months prior to the maturity date of the Notes) (the Par Call Date"), the Company may redeem the Notes at its option, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, at a redemption price (expressed as a percentage of principal amount and rounded to three decimal places) equal to the greater of:

(a) (1) the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest thereon discounted to the Redemption Date (assuming the Notes matured on the Par Call Date) on a semi-annual basis (assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) at the Treasury Rate plus 15 basis points less (2) interest accrued to the Redemption Date; and

12

(b) 100% of the principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed;

plus, in either case, accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the Redemption Date.

On or after the Par Call Date, the Company may redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes being redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the Redemption Date.

The Company's actions and determinations in determining the redemption price shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes, absent manifest error. Notice of any redemption of Notes will be mailed or electronically delivered (or otherwise transmitted in accordance with the Depositary's procedures) at least 10 days but not more than 60 days before the applicable Redemption Date, to each Holder of the Notes to be redeemed as provided in Section 11.2 of the Base Indenture. Notice of any redemption of any Notes in connection with a corporate transaction that is pending (including an equity offering, an incurrence of indebtedness or a change of control) may, at the Company's discretion, be given subject to one or more conditions precedent, including, but not limited to, completion of the transaction. If such redemption is so subject to satisfaction of one or more conditions precedent, such notice shall describe each such condition, and such notice may be rescinded in the event that any or all such conditions shall not have been satisfied or otherwise waived by the Redemption Date. The Company shall notify each applicable Holder of any such rescission as soon as reasonably practicable after the Company determines that it will not be able satisfy or otherwise waive such conditions precedent.

In the case of a partial redemption, selection of the Notes for redemption will be made pro rata, by lot or by such other method as the Trustee in its sole discretion deems appropriate and fair. No Notes of a principal amount of \$2,000 or less will be redeemed in part. If any Note is to be redeemed in part only, the notice of redemption that relates to the Note will state the portion of the principal amount of the Note to be redeemed. A new Note in a principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of the Note will be issued in the name of the Holder of the Note upon surrender for cancellation of the original Note. For so long as the Notes are held by DTC (or another Depositary), the redemption of the Notes shall be done in accordance with the policies and procedures of the Depositary.

Unless the Company defaults in the payment of the redemption price, on and after the applicable Redemption Date, interest will cease to accrue on the Notes or portions of the Notes called for redemption.

The Company and/or its Affiliates may directly or indirectly, at any time and from time to time, acquire all or any part of the outstanding Notes by means other than a redemption, whether pursuant to tender or exchange offer(s), open market purchase(s), negotiated transaction(s), or otherwise, so long as such acquisition does not otherwise violate the terms of the Indenture.

13

Section 2.09. Change of Control.

(a) Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control Triggering Event, unless a notice of redemption has been delivered pursuant to Section 2.08 prior to or within 30 days after such Change of Control Triggering Event stating that all of the Notes will be redeemed as provided for in Section 2.08, each Holder of the Notes shall have the right to require the Company to make an offer (a "Change of Control Offer") to each Holder to repurchase all or any part (equal to \$2,000 or an integral multiple of \$1,000 in excess thereof) of each Holder's outstanding Notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of purchase (the "Change of Control Payment"), subject to the rights of Holders of Notes on the relevant record date to receive interest due on the relevant interest payment date. Within 30 days following any Change of Control Triggering Event, or, at the Company's option, prior to any Change of Control, but after the public announcement of the transaction or transactions that would constitute the Change of Control, the Company shall provide notice to each Holder, with a copy to the Trustee, describing the transaction or transactions that constitute or would constitute the Change of Control Triggering Event and stating: (1) that the Change of Control Offer is being made pursuant to this Section 2.09 and that all Notes properly tendered will be accepted for payment; (2) the purchase price and the purchase date, which, except as contemplated by clause (3) below, shall be no earlier than 30 days and no later than 60 days from the date such notice is provided (the "Change of Control Payment Date"); (3) if mailed prior to the date of the consummation of the Change of Control, that the offer to purchase is conditioned on the Change of Control Triggering Event occurring, with the Change of Control Payment Date to occur no earlier than 30 days and no later than 60 days from the date on which the Change of Control Triggering Event occurs; (4) that any Security not tendered will continue to accrue interest; (5) that, unless the Company defaults in the payment of the Change of Control Payment, all Notes accepted for payment pursuant to the Change of Control Offer shall cease to accrue interest after the Change of Control Payment Date; (6) that Holders electing to have any Notes purchased pursuant to the Change of Control Offer will be required to surrender the Notes, with the form entitled "Option of Holder to Elect Purchase" on the reverse of the Notes completed, to the Paying Agent at the address specified in the notice prior to the close of business on the third Business Day preceding the Change of Control Payment Date; (7) that Holders will be entitled to withdraw their election if the Paying Agent receives, not later than the close of business on the second Business Day preceding the Change of Control Payment Date, a telegram, telex, facsimile transmission or letter setting forth the name of the Holder, the principal amount of Notes delivered for purchase, and a statement that such Holder is withdrawing his election to have the Notes purchased; and (8) that Holders whose Notes are being purchased only in part will be issued new Notes equal in principal amount to the unpurchased portion of the Notes surrendered, which unpurchased portion must be equal to \$2,000 in principal amount or an integral multiple of \$1,000 in excess thereof. The Company shall comply with the requirements of Rule 14e-1 under the Exchange Act and any other securities laws and regulations thereunder to the extent such laws and regulations are applicable in connection with the repurchase of Notes in connection with a Change of Control Triggering Event. To the extent that the provisions of any securities laws or regulations conflict with this Section 2.09, the Company will comply with the applicable securities laws and regulations and will not be deemed to have breached its obligations under this Section 2.09 by virtue of such compliance.

(b) On the Change of Control Payment Date, the Company shall, to the extent lawful, (1) accept for payment all Notes or portions thereof properly tendered pursuant to the Change of Control Offer, (2) deposit with the Paying Agent an amount equal to the Change of Control Payment in respect of all Notes or portions thereof properly tendered and (3) deliver or cause to be delivered to the Trustee the Notes properly accepted together with an Officers' Certificate stating the aggregate principal amount of Notes or portions thereof being purchased by the Company. The Paying Agent shall promptly deliver to each Holder of Notes properly tendered the Change of Control Payment for such Notes, and the Company shall promptly execute, and the Trustee shall promptly authenticate and deliver (or cause to be transferred by book entry) to each Holder, a new Note equal in principal amount to any unpurchased portion of the Note surrendered by such Holder, if any; provided, that each such new Note shall be in a principal amount of \$2,000 or an integral multiple of \$1,000 in excess thereof. The Company shall publicly announce the results of the Change of Control Offer on or as soon as practicable after the Change of Control Payment Date.

14

The Company will not be required to make a Change of Control Offer upon the occurrence of a Change of Control Triggering Event if a third Person makes the Change of Control Offer in the manner, at the time and otherwise in compliance with the requirements set forth in this Section 2.09 and all other provisions of the Indenture applicable to a Change of Control Offer made by the Company and purchases all Notes properly tendered and not withdrawn under such Change of Control Offer.

- Section 2.10. Sinking Fund. The Notes shall not have the benefit of a sinking fund.
- Section 2.11. Methods of Receiving Payments on the Notes. If a Holder has given wire transfer instructions to the Company at least 10 Business Days prior to the applicable payment date, the Company will make all payments on such Holder's Notes in accordance with those instructions. Otherwise, payments on the Notes will be made at the office or agency of the Paying Agent and Registrar for the Notes; provided, however, that the Company may, at its option, elect to make interest payments by check mailed to the Holders at their addresses set forth in the Register of Notes; provided, further, that with respect to Notes represented by Global Notes, the Company shall make payments of principal and interest by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the account specified by the Depositary.
- Section 2.12. Consolidation, Merger, Conveyance, Transfer or Lease. The Company may not consolidate or combine with or merge with or into or sell, assign (excluding any assignment solely as collateral for security purposes), convey, lease, transfer or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole to any Person or Persons in a single transaction or through a series of related transactions, unless:
- (a) the Company is the successor, continuing or transferee Person or, if the Company is not the successor, continuing or transferee Person, the resulting, surviving or transferee Person (the "surviving entity") is a company organized and existing under the laws of the United States, any State thereof or the District of Columbia that expressly assumes all of the Company's obligations under the Notes and the Indenture pursuant to a supplemental indenture executed and delivered to the Trustee;
 - (b) immediately after giving effect to such transaction or series of related transactions, no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing; and
- (c) the Company or the surviving entity delivers to the Trustee an Officers' Certificate and Opinion of Counsel stating that the transaction or series of related transactions and a supplemental indenture, if any, complies with the Indenture.

15

If any consolidation or merger of the Company or any sale, assignment, conveyance, lease, transfer or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole occurs in accordance with clauses (a)-(c) of this Section 2.12, the surviving entity will succeed to, and be substituted for, and may exercise every right and power of, the Company under the Indenture with the same effect as if such surviving entity had been named as the initial issuer under the Indenture. The Company will (except in the case of a lease) be discharged from all obligations and covenants under the Indenture and the Notes, and may be liquidated and dissolved

For the avoidance of doubt, no Officers' Certificate or Opinion of Counsel will be required under clause (c) of this Section in connection with a consolidation, combination, merger, sale, assignment, conveyance, lease, transfer or other disposition involving only the Company and one or more of its Subsidiaries where the Company is the successor, continuing or transferee Person.

This Section shall apply to the Notes in lieu of Section 4.1 of the Base Indenture, which shall not apply to the Notes.

Section 2.13. Limitation on Liens.

- (a) The Company shall not, and shall not permit any Consolidated Subsidiary to, incur any Debt secured by a Lien on any Principal Property or any shares of Capital Stock of any Consolidated Subsidiary that owns a Principal Property (other than any Subsidiary that is principally engaged in leasing or receivables financing transactions or that holds as all or substantially all of its assets equity interests in one or more such Subsidiaries), in each case, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, without making effective provision that the Notes shall be secured equally and ratably with (or prior to) such secured Debt for so long as such secured Debt remains outstanding, unless, upon giving effect to the incurrence of such Debt and any substantially simultaneous permanent repayment of any secured Debt, the aggregate amount of all Debt secured by a Lien on any Principal Property or on any shares of Capital Stock of any Consolidated Subsidiary that owns a Principal Property (other than any Subsidiary that is principally engaged in leasing or receivables financing transactions or that holds as all or substantially all of its assets equity interests in one or more such Subsidiaries), together with all Attributable Debt of the Company and its Consolidated Subsidiaries in respect of Sale and Leaseback Transactions involving Principal Properties, would not exceed 15% of the Consolidated Total Assets of the Company and the Consolidated Subsidiaries. The aggregate amount of all secured Debt referred to in the preceding sentence shall exclude any then existing secured Debt that has been secured equally and ratably with the Notes.
- (b) The restriction set forth in Section 2.13(a) shall not apply to, and there shall be excluded from all Debt so secured in any computation under the restriction in Section 2.13(a) and under the restriction in Section 2.14, Debt secured by:
 - (i) Liens on any property or shares of Capital Stock existing at the time of acquisition thereof provided that any such Lien (1) was in existence prior to the date of such acquisition, (2) was not incurred in contemplation thereof and (3) does not extend to any other property or shares of Capital Stock (other than proceeds);

- (iii) Liens in favor of governmental bodies to secure progress or advance payments pursuant to any contract or provision of any statute;
- (iv) Liens created or incurred in connection with an industrial revenue bond, industrial development bond, pollution control bond or similar financing arrangement between the Company or a Consolidated Subsidiary and any federal, state or municipal government or other governmental body or quasi-governmental agency;
- (v) Liens on property or shares of Capital Stock to secure all or part of the cost of acquiring (including, without limitation, acquisitions through merger or consolidation), substantially repairing or altering, constructing, developing or substantially improving the property, or to secure Debt incurred for any such purpose, to the extent that any such Lien relates solely to the property subject to the Lien, proceeds thereof and agreements relating thereto and that the principal amount of Debt secured by each such Lien was incurred concurrently with, or within 180 days of, such acquisition (including, without limitation, acquisitions through merger or consolidation), repair, alteration, construction (or the commencement of commercial operation of such property, whichever is later), development or improvement and does not exceed the cost to the Company or such Consolidated Subsidiary of the property subject to the Lien, as determined in accordance with GAAP;
 - (vi) Liens on property or shares of Capital Stock of any entity existing at the time such entity becomes a Subsidiary;
- (vii) Liens in favor of a governmental agency to qualify the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary to do business, maintain self-insurance or obtain other benefits, or Liens under workers' compensation laws, unemployment insurance laws, social security laws or regulations or similar legislation;
- (viii) Liens imposed by law, such as laborers' or other employees', carriers', warehousemen's, mechanics', materialmen's, repairmen's, vendors' and other like Liens;
- (ix) Liens arising out of judgments or awards against the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary with respect to which the Company or such Consolidated Subsidiary at the time shall be prosecuting an appeal or proceedings for review;
- (x) Liens for taxes, assessments, governmental charges or levies not yet subject to penalties for nonpayment or the amount or validity of which is being in good faith contested by appropriate action by the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary, as the case may be; and
- (xi) any refinancing, refunding, extension, renewal or replacement, in whole or in part, of any Lien referred to above, to the extent that such refinancing, refunding, extension, renewal or replacement Lien is limited to the same property or shares of Capital Stock that secured the Lien so refinanced, refunded, extended, renewed or replaced (and proceeds thereof and any after-acquired collateral within the scope of the collateral granting clause that was in effect prior to such refinancing, refunding, extension, renewal or replacement) and will not exceed the principal amount of Debt so secured at the time of such refinancing, refunding, extension, renewal or replacement; *provided* that such principal amount of Debt so secured shall continue to be included in the computation in the first paragraph of this covenant and under Section 2.14 to the extent so included at the time of such refinancing, refunding, extension, renewal or replacement.

17

For purposes of this Section 2.13, an "acquisition" of property (including real, personal or intangible property or shares of Capital Stock) shall include any transaction or series of related transactions by which the Company or a Consolidated Subsidiary acquires, directly or indirectly, an interest, or an additional interest (to the extent thereof), in such property, including an acquisition through merger or consolidation with, or an acquisition of an interest in, a Person owning an interest in such property.

Section 2.14. Limitation on Sale and Leaseback Transactions.

- (a) The Company shall not, and shall not permit any of its Consolidated Subsidiaries to, enter into any Sale and Leaseback Transaction with respect to any Principal Property unless:
 - (i) upon giving effect thereto, the aggregate amount of all Attributable Debt of the Company and its Consolidated Subsidiaries with respect to Sale and Leaseback Transactions involving Principal Properties plus the aggregate amount of Debt secured by Liens on any Principal Property or on any shares of Capital Stock of any Consolidated Subsidiary (other than any Subsidiary that is principally engaged in leasing or receivables financing transactions or that holds as all or substantially all of its assets equity interests in one or more such Subsidiaries) incurred without equally and ratably securing the Notes pursuant to Section 2.13 (other than Liens of the types described in Section 2.13(b)(i)-(xi)) would not exceed 15% of the Consolidated Total Assets of the Company and the Consolidated Subsidiaries; or
 - (ii) within 180 days of such Sale and Leaseback Transaction involving a Principal Property, the Company or such Consolidated Subsidiary applies an amount not less than the greater of:
 - (1) the Net Proceeds of the Sale and Leaseback Transaction; and
 - (2) the fair market value of the Principal Property so leased at the time of such transaction;
 - to either (A) the retirement or prepayment, and in either case, the permanent reduction, of Funded Debt of the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary (including that in the case of a revolver or similar arrangement that makes credit available, such commitment is so permanently reduced by such amount); or (B) the purchase of other property that will constitute Principal Property.
- (b) The restriction set forth in Section 2.14(a) shall not apply to any Sale and Leaseback Transaction, and there shall be excluded from Attributable Debt in any computation described in this Section 2.14 and in Section 2.13 with respect to any such transaction:
 - $(i) \ solely \ between \ the \ Company \ and \ a \ Consolidated \ Subsidiary \ or \ solely \ between \ Consolidated \ Subsidiaries;$

18

- (ii) financed through an industrial revenue bond, industrial development bond, pollution control bond or similar financing arrangement between the Company or a Consolidated Subsidiary and any federal, state or municipal government or other governmental body or quasi- governmental agency;
 - (iii) in which the applicable lease is for a period, including renewal rights, of three years or less;
- (iv) as to which the effective date of any such arrangement or the purchaser's commitment therefor is within 180 days prior or subsequent to the acquisition of the Principal Property (including, without limitation, acquisition by merger or consolidation) or the completion of construction and commencement of operation thereof,

whichever is later; or

- (v) in which the lease payment is created in connection with a project financed with, and such obligation constitutes, a Nonrecourse Obligation.
- Section 2.15. Events of Default. In lieu of Section 6.1 of the Base Indenture (which shall not apply to the Notes), the following are Events of Default with respect to the Notes:
 - (a) the Company defaults in the payment of any installment of interest on any Note when due, continued for 30 days;
- (b) the Company defaults in the payment of principal (or premium, if any) on any Note as and when the same becomes due either upon maturity, by declaration or otherwise:
- (c) the Company defaults in the performance of any of the other covenants or agreements in the Indenture relating to the Notes which is not remedied within a period of 90 days after written notice by the Trustee or Holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Notes then outstanding;
- (d) there occurs an event of default under the terms of any indenture or instrument for borrowed money under which the Company or any Significant Subsidiary has outstanding an aggregate principal amount of at least \$140,000,000, which event of default results in an acceleration of the payment of all or a portion of such indebtedness for money borrowed prior to its maturity, which acceleration is not rescinded or annulled within 30 days after notice of such acceleration; and
 - (e) (i) the Company or any Significant Subsidiary:
 - (A) commences a voluntary case or proceeding under any Bankruptcy Law;
 - (B) consents to the entry of a judgment, decree or order for relief against it in an involuntary case or proceeding under any Bankruptcy Law;

19

- (C) consents to the appointment of a Custodian of it or for any substantial part of its property;
- (D) makes a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors; or
- (E) consents to or acquiesces in the institution of a bankruptcy or an insolvency proceeding against it under any Bankruptcy Law;

or takes any comparable action under any foreign laws relating to insolvency; or

- (f) (ii) a court of competent jurisdiction enters an order or decree under any Bankruptcy Law that:
 - (A) is for relief against the Company or any Significant Subsidiary;
 - (B) appoints a Custodian of the Company or any Significant Subsidiary; or
 - (C) orders the winding up or liquidation of the Company or any Significant Subsidiary;

or any similar relief is granted under any foreign laws and the order, decree or relief remains unstayed and in effect for 90 days.

Section 2.16. <u>Modification and Waiver</u>. In addition to those matters set forth in the Base Indenture, the following modifications or amendments to the Indenture may not be made without the consent of each of the Holders of the Notes so affected:

- (a) cause any Note to become subordinate in right of payment to any other Debt, except to the extent provided in the terms of such Note; or
- (b) impair the right of any Holder of the Notes to require repurchase of the Notes on the terms provided in the Indenture.

Section 2.17. Original Issue Discount. Section 3.7 of the Base Indenture shall not apply to the Notes.

ARTICLE III

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 3.01. <u>Recitals By Company</u>. The recitals in this Supplemental Indenture are made by the Company only and not by the Trustee, and all of the provisions contained in the Base Indenture in respect of the rights, privileges, immunities, powers and duties of the Trustee shall be applicable in respect of the Notes and of this Supplemental Indenture as fully and with like effect as if set forth herein in full.

Section 3.02. <u>Application to Notes Only.</u> Each and every term and condition contained in this Supplemental Indenture that modifies, amends or supplements the terms and conditions of the Base Indenture shall apply only to the Notes established hereby and not to any other series of Securities established under the Base Indenture.

20

Section 3.03. <u>Benefits</u>. Nothing contained in the Indenture shall or shall be construed to confer upon any Person other than a Holder of the Notes, the Company and the Trustee any right or interest to avail itself of any benefit under any provision of the Indenture or the Notes.

Section 3.04. Effective Date. This Supplemental Indenture shall be effective as of the date first above written upon the execution and delivery hereof by each of the parties hereto.

Section 3.05. <u>Ratification</u>. As supplemented hereby, the Base Indenture is in all respects ratified and confirmed and all the terms, provisions and conditions thereof remain in full force and effect.

Section 3.06. Instructions. The Trustee shall have the right to accept and act upon instructions, including funds transfer instructions ('Instructions') given pursuant to

this Indenture and delivered using Electronic Means; provided, however, that the Company shall provide to the Trustee an incumbency certificate listing officers with the authority to provide such Instructions ("Authorized Officers") and containing specimen signatures of such Authorized Officers, which incumbency certificate shall be amended by the Company whenever a person is to be added or deleted from the listing. If the Company elects to give the Trustee Instructions using Electronic Means and the Trustee in its discretion elects to act upon such Instructions, the Trustee's understanding of such Instructions shall be deemed controlling. The Company understands and agrees that the Trustee cannot determine the identity of the actual sender of such Instructions and that the Trustee shall conclusively presume that directions that purport to have been sent by an Authorized Officer listed on the incumbency certificate provided to the Trustee have been sent by such Authorized Officer. The Company shall be responsible for ensuring that only Authorized Officers transmit such Instructions to the Trustee and that the Company and all Authorized Officers are solely responsible to safeguard the use and confidentiality of applicable user and authorization codes, passwords and/or authentication keys upon receipt by the Company. The Trustee shall not be liable for any losses, costs or expenses arising directly or indirectly from the Trustee's reliance upon and compliance with such Instructions notwithstanding such directions conflict or are inconsistent with a subsequent written instruction. The Company agrees: (i) to assume all risks arising out of the use of Electronic Means to submit Instructions to the Trustee, including without limitation the risk of the Trustee acting on unauthorized Instructions, and the risk of interception and misuse by third parties; (ii) that it is fully informed of the method(s) selected by the Company; (iii) that the security procedures (if any) to be followed in connection with its transmission

Section 3.07. Counterparts. This Supplemental Indenture may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, and such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument.

21

Section 3.08. <u>Governing Law; Waiver of Jury Trial</u>. THIS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE AND THE NOTES SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK. EACH OF THE COMPANY AND THE TRUSTEE HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY AND ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE, THE NOTES OR THE TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

[Signatures on Next Page]

22

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Supplemental Indenture to be duly executed as of the date first written above.

CUMMINS INC., an Indiana corporation

By: /s/ Mark Smith
Name: Mark Smith

Title: Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

[Signature Page to the Seventh Supplemental Indenture]

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,

a national banking association (as successor-in-interest to U.S. Bank National Association), as Trustee

By: /s/ Linda Garcia
Name: Linda Garcia
Title: Vice President

[Signature Page to the Seventh Supplemental Indenture]

EXHIBIT A

FORM OF NOTE

THIS SECURITY IS A SECURITY IN GLOBAL FORM WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE INDENTURE HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AND IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF A DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE THEREOF. THIS SECURITY MAY NOT BE EXCHANGED OR TRANSFERRED EXCEPT AS A WHOLE BY THE DEPOSITARY TO A NOMINEE OF THE DEPOSITARY OR BY THE DEPOSITARY OR ANY SUCH NOMINEE TO A SUCCESSOR DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE OF SUCH SUCCESSOR DEPOSITARY, EXCEPT IN THE LIMITED CIRCUMSTANCES DESCRIBED IN THE INDENTURE.

UNLESS THIS SECURITY IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY, A NEW YORK CORPORATION ("DTC"), TO THE COMPANY OR ITS AGENT FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY SECURITY ISSUED IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC (AND ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO. OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR

OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.

CUMMINS INC. 5.150% SENIOR NOTE DUE 2034

Principal Amount
CUSIP No.: 231021 AW6
ISIN No.: US231021AW65
No. ___

\$

A-1

Payments under this Note will be made in the manner contemplated by Section 2.11 of the Supplemental Indenture (as defined below).

Unless the certificate of authentication herein has been duly executed by the Trustee referred to herein by manual signature, this Note shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.

This Note is one of a duly authorized issue of securities of the Company (the 'Securities' and each, a "Security") issued under an Indenture dated as of September 16, 2013 (the "Base Indenture"), between the Company and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association (as successor-in-interest to U.S. Bank National Association), as trustee (the "Trustee," which term includes any successor Trustee under the Indenture), as amended, modified and supplemented by a Seventh Supplemental Indenture dated as of February 20, 2024 (the "Supplemental Indenture" and the Base Indenture, as amended, modified and supplemented by the Supplemental Indenture, the 'Indenture'"), between the Company and the Trustee, to which Indenture reference is hereby made for a statement of the respective rights, limitations of rights, duties and immunities thereunder of the Company, the Trustee and the Holders of the Notes and of the terms upon which the Notes are, and are to be, authenticated and delivered. This Note is one of the series designated on the face hereof limited in aggregate principal amount to \$750,000,000, except that the Company may, without the consent of the Holders, "reopen" the series and issue additional Notes that have the same ranking, interest rate, maturity date and other terms as this Note, other than with respect to the date of issuance, the issue price and, in some cases, the first interest payment date.

The Company may, at its option, redeem some or all of the Notes at any time and from time to time as described in Section 2.08 of the Supplemental Indenture. In addition, the Company and/or its Affiliates may directly or indirectly, at any time and from time to time, acquire all or any part of the outstanding Notes by means other than a redemption, whether pursuant to tender or exchange offer(s), open market purchase(s), negotiated transaction(s), or otherwise, so long as such acquisition does not otherwise violate the terms of the Indenture.

Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control Triggering Event, unless a notice of redemption has been delivered pursuant to Section 2.08 of the Supplemental Indenture prior to or within 30 days after such Change of Control Triggering Event stating that all of the Notes will be redeemed as provided for in Section 2.08 of the Supplemental Indenture, each Holder of the Notes will have the right to require the Company to make an offer to each Holder to repurchase all or any part of each Holder's Notes pursuant to a Change of Control Offer at a purchase price equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of purchase, subject to the rights of Holders of Notes on the relevant record date to receive interest due on the relevant interest payment date. Additional terms and conditions relating to Change of Control Offers are set forth in the Indenture.

A-2

The Company shall have no obligation to redeem or purchase the Notes pursuant to any sinking fund or analogous provision.

The Indenture contains certain covenants that, among other things, limit the ability of the Company and its Consolidated Subsidiaries to consolidate or combine with, merge or sell, assign, convey, lease, transfer or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of their assets, to incur Debt secured by a Lien or to enter into Sale and Leaseback Transactions, in each case in the manner and to the extent set forth in the Indenture.

If an Event of Default with respect to the Notes shall have occurred and be continuing, the principal of all the Notes may be declared due and payable in the manner and with the effect provided in the Indenture.

The Company and the Trustee may enter into an indenture or indentures supplemental to the Indenture without notice to or the consent of the Holders for limited purposes specified in the Indenture. With the consent of the Holders of greater than 50% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Securities of each series affected by such supplemental indenture, the Company and the Trustee may enter into an indenture or indentures supplemental to the Indenture for the purpose of adding any provisions to or changing the provisions of the Indenture or any supplement thereto or of modifying in any manner the rights of the Holders of the Securities of each such affected series; provided, however, that no such supplemental indenture shall be entered into for any of the purposes described in Section 9.2 of the Base Indenture or Section 2.16 of the Supplemental Indenture, without the consent of the Holder of each outstanding Security of the applicable series affected thereby.

The Holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding Notes may on behalf of the Holders of all the Notes waive compliance in a particular instance by the Company with any provision of the Indenture with respect to the Notes, as provided for in the Indenture.

Holders of Notes may not enforce their rights pursuant to the Indenture or the Notes except as provided in the Indenture. No reference herein to the Indenture and no provision of this Note or of the Indenture shall alter or impair the obligation of the Company, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of (and premium, if any) and interest on this Note at the times, place and rate, and in the coin or currency, herein prescribed.

The Notes are issuable in registered form without coupons in minimum denominations of U.S. \$2,000 and any integral multiple of U.S.\$1,000 in excess thereof. As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, Notes are exchangeable for a like aggregate principal amount of Notes that are of other authorized denominations.

A-3

Notes to be exchanged shall be surrendered at any office or agency maintained by the Company for such purpose, and the Company shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor the Notes which the Holder making the exchange shall be entitled to receive. Upon due presentment for registration of transfer of any Note at any such office or agency, the Company shall execute and register and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver in the name of the transferee or transferees a new Note for an equal aggregate amount. Registration or registration of transfer of any Note by the Registrar (initially the Trustee) in the registry books maintained by such Registrar, and delivery of such Note, duly authenticated, shall be deemed to complete the registration or registration of transfer of such Note.

No service charge shall be made for any exchange or registration of transfer, but the Company may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection therewith. Prior to due presentment of a Note for registration of transfer, the Company, the Trustee and any agent of the Company or the Trustee may treat the Person in whose name a Note is registered as the owner for all purposes whether or not such Note be overdue, and neither the Company, the Trustee nor any such agent shall be affected by notice to the contrary.

This Note is in the form of a Global Note as provided in the Indenture. If at any time the Depositary notifies the Company that it is unwilling or unable to continue as Depositary for this Note or if at any time the Depositary for this Note shall no longer be eligible or in good standing under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or other applicable statute or regulation, the Company shall appoint a successor Depositary with respect to this Note. If a successor Depositary for this Note is not appointed by the Company within 90 days after the Company receives notice or becomes aware of such ineligibility, the Company will issue Notes in definitive form in exchange for this Global Note representing Notes in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of this Global Note.

No recourse under or upon any obligation, covenant or agreement contained in the Indenture, in any Note, or because of any indebtedness evidenced thereby, shall be had against any incorporator or other Person acting in a similar capacity, as such, or against any past, present or future stockholder, officer, director or other Person acting in a similar capacity, as such, of the Company or of any successor, either directly or through the Company or any successor, under any rule of law, statute or constitutional provision or by the enforcement of any assessment or by any legal or equitable proceeding or otherwise, all such liability being expressly waived and released by the acceptance of the Notes by the Holders thereof and as part of the consideration for the issue of the Notes.

The Notes are subject to defeasance at the option of the Company as provided in the Indenture.

All terms used in this Note which are defined in the Indenture shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Indenture.

A-4

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this instrument to be duly executed.

Dated: February 20, 2024

Cummins Inc.

By:

Name:

Title:

[Signature Page to 2034 Global Note]

This is one of the Notes of the series designated therein referred to in the within-mentioned Indenture.

Dated: February 20, 2024

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,

a national banking association (as successor-in-interest to U.S. Bank National Association), as Trustee

Ву: _____

Authorized Officer

[Signature Page to 2034 Global Note]

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this instrument, shall be construed as the or regulations:	hough they were written out in	full according to applicable laws
TEN COM — as tenants in common TEN ENT — as tenants by the entireties JT TEN — as joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common	UNIF GIFT MIN ACT-	Custodian (Minor) under Uniform Gifts to Minors Act
		(State)
Additional abbreviations may also be used although not in the	ne above list.	
ASSIGNMENT FORM		
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sell(s), assign(s) and transfer(s) unto:		
PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY OR OTHER IDENTIFYING NUMBER OF ASSIGNEE		
OTHER IDENTIFY AND NUMBER OF ASSIGNEE		
PLEASE PRINT OR TYPEWRITE NAME AND ADDRESS INCLUDING POSTAL ZIP CODE OF ASSIGNEE		
the within Security and all rights thereunder, hereby irrevocably constituting and appointing attorfull power of substitution in the premises.	rney to transfer said Security or	n the books of the Company, with
Dated:		
Signature		
NOTICE: THE SIGNATURE TO THIS ASSIGNMENT MUST CORRESPOND WITH THE NAME AS WRI IN EVERY PARTICULAR, WITHOUT ALTERATION OR ENLARGEMENT OR ANY CHANGE WHATEV		THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT
A-8		
OPTION OF HOLDER TO BURGE MIRCHASI	7	
OPTION OF HOLDER TO ELECT PURCHASE If you want to elect to have this Note purchased by the Company pursuant to Section 2.09 of the Supple		ov below:
Section 2.09	inental indentale, eneck the of	JA BCIOW.
If you want to elect to have only part of the Note purchased by the Company pursuant to Section 2.0	9 of the Supplemental Indentu	are, state the amount you elect to
have purchased:	11	,
\$		
Date:		
Your Signature:		
(Sign exactly as your name appears on the face of this Note)		
Tax Identification No:		

SCHEDULE OF INCREASES AND DECREASES

The following increases and decreases to this Global Note have been made:

Date of Increase or Decrease	Amount of Decrease in Principal Amount of this Global Note	Amount of Increase in Principal Amount of this Global Note	Principal Amount of this Global Note Following Such Decrease or Increase	Signature of Authorized Officer of Trustee or Note Custodian

CUMMINS INC.

and

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,

as Trustee

EIGHTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE

Dated as of February 20, 2024

to Indenture dated as of September 16, 2013

5.450% Senior Notes due 2054

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	PAGE
Article I DEFINITIONS	1
Section 1.01. Definitions	1
Article II ESTABLISHMENT OF SECURITIES	7
Section 2.01. Title of Securities	7
Section 2.02. Aggregate Principal Amount of Notes; Additional Notes	8
Section 2.03. Authentication and Delivery of the Notes	8
Section 2.04. Payment of Principal and Interest on the Notes; Form of the Notes; Global Notes	9
Section 2.05. Registration, Transfer and Exchange Section 2.06. Legends	12
Section 2.00. Legentus Section 2.07. Paying Agent; Custodian; Place of Payment	12 12
Section 2.08. Optional Redemption; Open Market Purchases, etc.	12
Section 2.09. Change of Control	14
Section 2.10. Sinking Fund	15
Section 2.11. Methods of Receiving Payments on the Notes	15
Section 2.12. Consolidation, Merger, Conveyance, Transfer or Lease	15
Section 2.13. Limitation on Liens	16
Section 2.14. Limitation on Sale and Leaseback Transactions	18
Section 2.15. Events of Default	19
Section 2.16. Modification and Waiver	20
Section 2.17. Original Issue Discount	20
Article III MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	20
Section 3.01. Recitals By Company	20
Section 3.02. Application to Notes Only	20
Section 3.03. Benefits	21
Section 3.04. Effective Date	21
Section 3.05. Ratification	21
Section 3.06. Instructions	21 21
Section 3.07. Counterparts Section 3.08. Governing Law; Waiver of Jury Trial	21
Section 5.08. Governing Law, waiver of July That	22
EXHIBIT A - FORM OF NOTE	

THIS EIGHTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE (this "Supplemental Indenture"), dated as of February 20, 2024, is entered into by and between CUMMINS INC., an Indiana corporation (along with any successor thereto, the "Company"), and U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a national banking association (as successor-in-interest to U.S. Bank National Association), as Trustee (along with any successor thereto, the "Trustee").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Company and the Trustee entered into that certain Indenture, dated as of September 16, 2013 (the <u>Base Indenture</u>"), which provides for the issuance by the Company from time to time of Securities, in one or more series as provided therein;

WHEREAS, the Company has determined to issue a series of Securities, as provided herein;

WHEREAS, Section 2.1 of the Base Indenture provides for the Company and the Trustee to enter into an indenture supplemental to the Base Indenture to establish the

form or terms of Securities of any series as provided by Sections 2.1 and 2.3 of the Base Indenture and to amend, modify or supplement the Base Indenture as it applies to such series; and

WHEREAS, all the conditions and requirements necessary to make this Supplemental Indenture, when duly executed and delivered, a valid and binding agreement in accordance with its terms and for the purposes herein expressed, have been performed and fulfilled.

NOW, THEREFORE:

In consideration of the agreements and obligations set forth herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

Section 1.01. Definitions.

For all purposes of this Supplemental Indenture, except as otherwise expressly provided for or unless the context otherwise requires:

- (a) Capitalized terms defined in the Base Indenture and used but not defined herein shall have the respective meanings given them in the Base Indenture;
- (b) All references herein to Articles and Sections, unless otherwise specified, refer to the corresponding Articles and Sections of this Supplemental Indenture; and

.

(c)The following terms shall have the indicated definitions and if the definition of any of the following terms differs from its respective definition set forth in the Base Indenture, the definition set forth herein shall control:

"Attributable Debt" in respect of a Sale and Leaseback Transaction means, on the date of any determination, the present value of the obligation of the lessee for net rental payments during the remaining term of the lease included in such Sale and Leaseback Transaction, including any period for which such lease has been extended or may, at the option of the lessor, be extended. Such present value shall be calculated using a discount rate equal to the interest rate set forth or implicit in the terms of such lease, determined in accordance with GAAP, or, if not practicable to determine such rate, the weighted average interest rate per annum borne by the Notes on such date of determination, in either case compounded semi-annually. "Net rental payments" means the total amount of rent payable by the lessee after excluding amounts required to be paid on account of maintenance and repairs, insurance, taxes, assessments, water rates and similar charges.

"Authorized Officers" has the meaning specified in Section 3.06.

"Base Indenture" has the meaning specified in the recitals hereto.

"Below Investment Grade Rating Event" means that the Notes cease to be rated with an Investment Grade Rating by at least two of the three Rating Agencies on any date during the period (the "Trigger Period") commencing on the date of the first public announcement by the Company of any Change of Control (or pending Change of Control) and ending 60 days following consummation of such Change of Control (which Trigger Period shall be extended following consummation of a Change of Control for so long as any of the Rating Agencies has publicly announced that it is considering a possible ratings downgrade); provided, however, that a Below Investment Grade Rating Event otherwise arising by virtue of particular reductions in rating shall not be deemed to have occurred in respect of a particular Change of Control (and thus shall not be deemed a Below Investment Grade Rating Event for purposes of the definition of Change of Control Triggering Event) if the Rating Agencies making the reduction in rating to which this definition would otherwise apply do not announce or publicly confirm or inform the Trustee in writing at the Company's request that the reduction was the result, in whole or in part, of any event or circumstance comprised of, or arising as a result of, or in respect of, the applicable Change of Control (whether or not the applicable Change of Control shall have occurred at the time of the Below Investment Grade Rating Event).

"Business Day" means any day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, that is not a day on which the Trustee or banking institutions in New York, New York are authorized or obligated by law or executive order to close.

"Certificated Notes" has the meaning specified in Section 2.05(e).

"Change of Control" means the occurrence of any of the following:

(1) the direct or indirect sale, lease, transfer, exchange, conveyance or other disposition (other than by way of merger or consolidation or as a pledge for security purposes only), in one or a series of related transactions, of all or substantially all of the properties or assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole to any "person" (as that term is used in Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act) other than the Company or one of its Subsidiaries;

2

- (2)the consummation of any transaction (including, without limitation, any merger or consolidation) the result of which is that any "person" (as defined above) becomes the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of more than 50% of the Company's then outstanding Voting Stock, measured by voting power rather than number of shares; or
 - (3) the approval by the holders of the Company's common stock of a plan for the Company's liquidation or dissolution;

other than, in the case of clause (1) or (3) above, any transaction or series of related transactions that complies with Section 2.12.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a transaction will not be deemed to involve a Change of Control under clause(2)of this definition if: (a)the Company becomes a direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of a holding company and (b)either (i)the direct or indirect holders of the Voting Stock of such holding company immediately following that transaction are substantially the same as the holders of the Company's Voting Stock immediately prior to that transaction, or (ii)immediately following that transaction, no "person" (as that term is used in Section13(d)(3)of the Exchange Act), other than a holding company satisfying the requirements of this sentence, is the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of more than 50% of the Voting Stock of such holding company.

"Change of Control Offer" has the meaning specified in Section 2.09(a).

- "Change of Control Payment" has the meaning specified in Section 2.09(a).
- "Change of Control Payment Date" has the meaning specified in Section 2.09(a).
- "Change of Control Triggering Event" means the occurrence of both a Change of Control and a Below Investment Grade Rating Event; provided that no Change of Control Triggering Event will be deemed to have occurred in connection with any particular Change of Control unless and until such Change of Control has actually been consummated.
 - "Company" has the meaning specified in the recitals hereto.
- "Consolidated Subsidiary" means a Subsidiary of the Company whose financial statements are consolidated with the Company's financial statements in accordance with GAAP.
- "Consolidated Total Assets" means, at any time of determination, the total assets of the Company and its Consolidated Subsidiaries, as shown on the consolidated balance sheet in the Company's then latest quarterly or annual report filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, prepared in accordance with GAAP.
- "Debt" means, at any time, (1) all obligations of the Company and all obligations of any Consolidated Subsidiary, to the extent such obligations would appear as a liability upon the consolidated balance sheet of the Company and the Consolidated Subsidiaries, in accordance with GAAP, (a) for borrowed money, (b) evidenced by bonds, debentures, notes or other similar instruments and (c) in respect of drawn and unreimbursed amounts under letters of credit supporting any Debt of others, and (2) all guarantees by the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary of Debt of others.

3

- "Depositary" means, with respect to the Notes issuable or issued in whole or in part in the form of one or more Global Notes, a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act that is appointed to act as Depositary for such Notes as contemplated by Section 2.04(d) or Section 2.05, as the case may be.
- "Electronic Means" means the following communications methods: e-mail as a portable document format ("pdf") or other replicating image attached to an e-mail, facsimile transmission, secure electronic transmission containing applicable authorization codes, passwords and/or authentication keys issued by the Trustee, or another method or system specified by the Trustee as available for use in connection with its services hereunder.
 - "Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
 - "Fitch" means Fitch Ratings Inc. and its successors.
- "Funded Debt" means (1) all Debt for money borrowed having a maturity of more than 12 months from the date as of which the determination is made or having a maturity of 12 months or less but by its terms being renewable or extendible beyond 12 months from such date at the option of the borrower (excluding any amount thereof included in current liabilities) and (2) all rental obligations payable more than 12 months from such date under leases that are capitalized in accordance with GAAP (such rental obligations to be included as Funded Debt at the amount so capitalized).
 - "GAAP" means generally accepted accounting principles as in effect from time to time in the United States of America.
 - "Global Note" has the meaning specified in Section 2.04(d).
- "Incur" means to, directly or indirectly, issue, assume, guaranty, incur, become directly or indirectly liable with respect to (including as a result of an acquisition (by way of merger, consolidation or otherwise)), or otherwise become responsible for, contingently or otherwise.
 - "Indenture" means the Base Indenture, as amended, modified and supplemented by this Supplemental Indenture.
 - "Instructions" has the meaning specified in Section 3.06.
- "Investment Grade Rating" means a rating equal to or higher than Baa3 (or the equivalent) by Moody's; a rating equal to or higher than BBB- (or the equivalent) by S&P; a rating equal to or higher than BBB- (or the equivalent) by Fitch; or the equivalent investment grade credit rating from any replacement Rating Agency selected by the Company.

4

- "Issue Date" means the date of the initial issuance of the Notes, which shall be the date hereof.
- "Lien" means any mortgage, pledge, hypothecation, charge, encumbrance, security interest, statutory or other lien, or other security or similar agreement or similar preferential arrangement of any kind or nature whatsoever, including any conditional sale or other title retention agreement having substantially the same economic effect as any of these.
 - "Moody's" means Moody's Investors Service, Inc. and its successors.
- "Net Proceeds" means, with respect to a Sale and Leaseback Transaction, the aggregate amount of cash or cash equivalents received by the Company or a Consolidated Subsidiary, less the sum of all payments, fees, commissions and expenses incurred in connection with such transaction, and less the amount (estimated reasonably and in good faith by the Company) of income, franchise, sales and other applicable taxes required to be paid by the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary in connection with such transaction in the taxable year that such transaction is consummated or in the two immediately succeeding taxable years, the computation of which shall take into account the reduction in tax liability resulting from any available operating losses and net operating loss carryovers, tax credits and tax credit carryforwards, and similar tax attributes.
- "Nonrecourse Obligation" means indebtedness or lease payment obligations substantially related to (i)the acquisition of assets not previously owned by the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary or (ii) the financing of a project involving the development or expansion of the Company's or any Consolidated Subsidiary's properties, in either case, as to which the obligee with respect to such indebtedness or obligation has no recourse to the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary or the Company's or any Consolidated Subsidiary's assets other than the assets which were acquired with the proceeds of such transaction or the project financed with the proceeds of such transaction (and the proceeds thereof), other than recourse for fraud, misrepresentation, misapplication of cash, waste, environmental claims and liabilities, prohibited transfers, violations of single purpose entity covenants and other circumstances customarily excluded by institutional lenders from exculpation provisions and/or included in separate guaranty or

indemnification agreements in non-recourse financings.

"Notes" has the meaning specified in Section 2.01.

"Par Call Date" has the meaning specified in Section 2.08.

"Participants" means members of, or participants in, the Depositary.

"Principal Property" means any manufacturing plant, warehouse or other similar facility or any parcel of real estate or group of contiguous parcels of real estate owned by the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary the gross book value of which on the date as of which the determination is being made exceeds 1% of Consolidated Total Assets and that is located in the United States of America, Canada or the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, other than any such manufacturing plant, warehouse or other similar facility or parcel or group of contiguous parcels of real estatethat in the opinion of the Company's Board of Directors is not of material importance to the business conducted by the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole.

5

"Rating Agency" means (1)each of Moody's, S&P and Fitch; and (2)if any of Moody's, S&P or Fitch ceases to rate the Notes or fails to make a rating of the Notes publicly available for reasons outside of the Company's control, a "nationally recognized statistical rating organization" within the meaning of Section3(a)(62) of the Exchange Act selected by the Company (as certified by a resolution of the Company's Board of Directors) as a replacement agency for Moody's, S&P and/or Fitch, as the case may be; provided that the Company shall give notice of any such replacement to the Trustee.

"Register of Notes" has the meaning specified in Section 2.05.

"Registrar" has the meaning specified in Section 2.05.

"S&P" means S&P Global Ratings, a division of S&P Global Inc., and its successors.

"Sale and Leaseback Transaction" means any arrangement whereby the Company or any of its Subsidiaries have sold or transferred, or will sell or transfer, property and have or will take back a lease pursuant to which the rental payments are calculated to amortize the purchase price of the property substantially over the useful life of such property.

"Significant Subsidiary" means any of the Company's Subsidiaries that would be a "Significant Subsidiary" within the meaning of Rule1-02 under Regulation S-X promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission.

"Subsidiary" means any corporation, partnership or other legal entity (a)the accounts of which are consolidated with the Company's in accordance with GAAP and (b)of which, in the case of a corporation, partnership or other legal entity, more than 50% of the outstanding Voting Stock is owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company or by one or more other Subsidiaries.

"Supplemental Indenture" has the meaning specified in the recitals hereto.

"Treasury Rate" means, with respect to any Redemption Date, the yield determined by the Company in accordance with the following two paragraphs.

The Treasury Rate shall be determined by the Company after 4:15 p.m., New York City time (or after such time as yields on U.S. government securities are posted daily by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System), on the third Business Day preceding the Redemption Date based upon the yield or yields for the most recent day that appear after such time on such day in the most recent statistical release published by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System designated as "Selected Interest Rates (Daily) – H.15" (or any successor designation or publication) ("H.15") under the caption "U.S. government securities—Treasury constant maturities—Nominal" (or any successor caption or heading) ("H.15 TCM"). In determining the Treasury Rate, the Company shall select, as applicable: (1)the yield for the Treasury constant maturity on H.15 exactly equal to the period from the Redemption Date to the Par Call Date (the "Remaining Life"); or (2)if there is no such Treasury constant maturity on H.15 immediately shorter than and one yield corresponding to the Treasury constant maturity on H.15 immediately longer than the Remaining Life – and shall interpolate to the Par Call Date on a straight-line basis (using the actual number of days) using such yields and rounding the result to three decimal places; or (3)if there is no such Treasury constant maturity on H.15 shorter than or longer than the Remaining Life, the yield for the single Treasury constant maturity on H.15 closest to the Remaining Life. For purposes of this paragraph, the applicable Treasury constant maturity or maturities on H.15 shall be deemed to have a maturity date equal to the relevant number of months or years, as applicable, of such Treasury constant maturity from the redemption date.

6

If on the third Business Day preceding the Redemption Date, H.15 TCM is no longer published, the Company shall calculate the Treasury Rate based on the rate per annum equal to the semi-annual equivalent yield to maturity at 11:00 a.m., New York City time, on the second Business Day preceding such redemption date of the United States Treasury security maturing on, or with a maturity that is closest to, the Par Call Date, as applicable. If there is no United States Treasury security maturing on the Par Call Date but there are two or more United States Treasury securities with a maturity date equally distant from the Par Call Date, one with a maturity date preceding the Par Call Date and one with a maturity date following the Par Call Date, the Company shall select the United States Treasury securities meting the Par Call Date. If there are two or more United States Treasury securities maturing on the Par Call Date or two or more United States Treasury securities the criteria of the preceding sentence, the Company shall select from among these two or more United States Treasury securities the United States Treasury security that is trading closest to par based upon the average of the bid and asked prices for such United States Treasury securities at 11:00 a.m., New York City time. In determining the Treasury Rate in accordance with the terms of this paragraph, the semi-annual yield to maturity of the applicable United States Treasury security, and rounded to three decimal places.

"Trustee" has the meaning specified in the recitals hereto.

"Voting Stock" of any specified Person as of any date means the Capital Stock of such Person that is at the time entitled to vote generally in the election of the Board of Directors of such Person.

The following provisions of this Article 2 are made pursuant to Section 2.1 of the Base Indenture in order to establish and set forth the terms of a series of Securities. In the event that any of the following terms conflict with those set forth in the Base Indenture, the terms set forth herein shall control.

Section 2.01. Title of Securities. There is hereby established a series of Securities designated the "5.450 % Senior Notes due 2054" (the 'Notes'').

7

Section 2.02. Aggregate Principal Amount of Notes; Additional Notes.

- (a) There are initially to be authenticated and delivered \$1,000,000,000 aggregate principal amount of the Notes.
- (b)At any time and from time to time after the Issue Date there may be authenticated and delivered an unlimited principal amount of additional Notes without the consent of any Holder of the Notes. Any such additional Notes will have the same ranking, interest rate, maturity date, redemption rights and other terms as any outstanding Notes, other than with respect to the date of issuance, the issue price and, in some cases, the first interest payment date. All Notes issued hereunder, including any additional Notes, will constitute a single series of Securities under the Indenture; provided, however, that any such additional Notes that are not fungible with the Notes issued on the Issue Date for United States federal income tax purposes shall be issued with CUSIP and ISIN numbers different from the CUSIP and ISIN numbers assigned to the Notes issued on the Issue Date.
- (c)Nothing contained in this Section 2.02 or elsewhere in the Indenture, or in the Notes, is intended to or shall limit execution by the Company or authentication or delivery by the Trustee of Notes under the circumstances contemplated by Sections 2.8, 2.9, 2.13 and 9.5 of the Base Indenture.

Section 2.03. Authentication and Delivery of the Notes.

- (a) At any time and from time to time after the execution and delivery of this Supplemental Indenture, the Company may deliver Notes executed by the Company to the Trustee for authentication, and the Trustee shall thereupon authenticate and deliver such Notes to or upon the written order of the Company, signed by one or more Officers of the Company, without further action by the Company. In authenticating such Notes and accepting the additional responsibilities under the Indenture in relation to such Notes, the Trustee shall be entitled to receive and (subject to Section 7.1 of the Base Indenture) shall be fully protected in relying upon:
 - (i) an Officers' Certificate prepared in accordance with Section 11.5 of the Base Indenture; and
 - (ii)an Opinion of Counsel prepared in accordance with Section11.5 of the Base Indenture, which shall state that the Base Indenture, this Supplemental Indenture and the Notes have been duly authorized and, when authenticated and delivered by the Trustee and issued by the Company in the manner and subject to any conditions specified in such Opinion of Counsel, will constitute valid and binding obligations of the Company, enforceable in accordance with their terms, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent transfer, reorganization, moratorium and other laws of general applicability relating to or affecting creditors' rights and to general equitable principles, regardless of whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law.
- (b)The Trustee shall have the right to decline to authenticate and deliver any Notes under this Sectionif the Trustee, being advised by counsel, determined that such action may not lawfully be taken by the Company or if the issue of such Notes pursuant to the Indenture will affect the Trustee's own rights, duties or immunities under the Indenture in a manner not reasonably acceptable to the Trustee.

8

(c)Notwithstanding anything in the Indenture to the contrary, authentication and execution of any Notes by counterpart shall satisfy the requirements of the Indenture with respect to the authentication and execution of such Notes.

Section 2.04. Payment of Principal and Interest on the Notes; Form of the Notes; Global Notes.

- (a)The Notes will mature on February20, 2054 and will bear interest at the rate of 5.450% per annum. Interest on the Notes will be payable semi-annually, in cash, in arrears on February20 and August20 of each year, commencing on August20, 2024, to the Holders thereof at the close of business on the immediately preceding February5 and August5 of each year. Interest on the Notes will accrue from and including the most recent date to which interest has been paid or, if no interest has been paid, from and including the date of issuance of the Notes. Interest on the Notes will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year comprised of twelve 30-day months.
 - (b) The Notes shall be issued in minimum denominations of \$2,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 in excess thereof.
- (c)The Notes shall be issued in registered form without coupons, substantially in the form of ExhibitA attached hereto. The form of the Trustee's certificate of authentication for the Notes shall be in substantially the form set forth in the form of Note attached hereto as ExhibitA. Each Note shall be dated the date of authentication thereof
- (d)The entire initially issued principal amount of the Notes shall initially be evidenced by one or more Global Securities (collectively, the "<u>Global Notes</u>") registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC, or another nominee of DTC. The Company initially appoints DTC to act as Depositary with respect to the Global Notes and the Trustee to act as custodian with respect to the Global Notes. So long as the Depositary, or its nominee, is the registered Holder and owner of the Global Notes, the Depositary or such nominee, as the case may be, will be considered the sole owner and Holder of the Notes for all purposes under the Indenture.

Section 2.05. Registration, Transfer and Exchange.

- (a) Registrar; Register of Notes. The Company shall cause to be kept at the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee a register of Notes (the register maintained in such office and in any other office or agency of the Company in a place of payment being herein sometimes collectively referred to as the "Register of Notes") in which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Company shall provide for the registration of Notes and of transfers of Notes. The Trustee is hereby appointed "Registrar" for the purpose of registering the Notes and transfers of the Notes as herein provided. The Company may appoint one or more co-Registrars with respect to the Notes and the term "Registrar" includes any co-Registrar. The Registrar shall retain copies of all letters, notices and other written communications received pursuant to Section 2.8 of the Base Indenture or this Section 2.05. The Company shall have the right to inspect and make copies of all such letters, notices or other written communications at any reasonable time upon the giving of reasonable written notice to the Registrar.
- (b) No Obligation of the Trustee. The Trustee shall have no obligation or duty to monitor, determine or inquire as to compliance with any restrictions on transfer imposed under the Indenture or under applicable law with respect to any transfer of any interest in any Note (including any transfers between or among Participants or beneficial owners of interests in any Global Note) other than to require delivery of such certificates and other documentation or evidence as are expressly required by, and to do so if and when expressly required by the terms of, the Indenture, and to examine the same to determine substantial compliance as to form with the express requirements hereof.

n

(c) Transfers of Notes and Interests in Notes.

- (i)The Registrar shall not be required (A)to issue, authenticate, register the transfer of or exchange Notes for a period of 15 days before the mailing of a notice of redemption of such Notes to be redeemed or (B) to register the transfer of or exchange of any Notes so selected for redemption in whole or in part.
- (ii)All Notes issued upon any transfer or exchange of Notes shall be valid and binding obligations of the Company, evidencing the same debt, and entitled to the same benefits under the Indenture, as the Notes surrendered upon such transfer or exchange.
- (iii)Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 2.05, unless and until it is exchanged in whole or in part for Certificated Notes, the Global Notes may not be transferred except as a whole by the Depositary to a nominee of such Depositary, or by a nominee of such Depositary to such Depositary or another nominee of such Depositary, or by such Depositary or any such nominee to a successor Depositary or a nominee of such successor Depositary.
- (iv)Ownership of interests in the Global Notes will be shown on, and the transfer of those ownership interests will be effected through, records maintained by the Depositary (with respect to Participants' interests) and such Participants (with respect to the owners of beneficial interests in such Global Notes).
- (d) Cancellation or Adjustment of Global Notes. At such time as all beneficial interests in a particular Global Note have been exchanged for Certificated Notes or a particular Global Note has been redeemed, repurchased or canceled in whole and not in part, each such Global Note shall be returned to or retained and canceled by the Trustee. At any time prior to such cancellation, if any beneficial interest in a Global Note is exchanged for or transferred to a Person who shall take delivery thereof in the form of a beneficial interest in another Global Note or for Certificated Notes, the principal amount of Notes represented by such Global Note shall be reduced accordingly and an endorsement shall be made on the Schedule of Increases and Decreases to such Global Note by the Trustee or by the Depositary at the direction of the Trustee to reflect such reduction; and if the beneficial interest is being exchanged for or transferred to a Person who shall take delivery thereof in the form of a beneficial interest in another Global Note, such other Global Note shall be increased accordingly and an endorsement shall be made on the Schedule of Increases and Decreases to such Global Note by the Trustee or by the Depositary at the direction of the Trustee to reflect such increase.

10

(e) Certificated Notes.

- (i)If at any time the Depositary (A)notifies the Company that it is unwilling or unable to continue as Depositary for the Global Notes and the Depositary fails to appoint a successor Depositary or (B)ceases to be a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act, then the Company shall appoint a successor Depositary eligible under applicable law with respect to such Global Notes. If a successor Depositary eligible to be a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act for such Global Notes is not appointed by the Company within 90 days after the date Company receives such notice or becomes aware of the unwillingness, inability or ineligibility of the Depositary set forth in clauses (A)and (B)above, the Company will execute, and the Trustee, upon receipt of a Company Order for the authentication and delivery of definitive Notes of such series and tenor ("Certificated Notes"), will authenticate and deliver such Certificated Notes, in any authorized denominations, in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of such Global Notes.
- (ii)In addition, if the Company, at its option, notifies the Trustee in writing that it elects to cause the issuance of the Certificated Notes, then the Company shall execute, and the Trustee, upon receipt of a Company Order for the authentication and delivery of Certificated Notes, will authenticate and deliver, Certificated Notes in any authorized denominations, in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of the Global Notes, in exchange for such Global Notes.
- (iii)Any time the Notes are to be authenticated and delivered in the form of Certificated Notes, the Company agrees to supply the Trustee with a reasonable supply of Certificated Notes without the legend required by Section2.06(a)and the Trustee agrees to hold such Notes in safekeeping until authenticated and delivered pursuant to the terms of the Indenture.
- (iv)The Depositary may surrender one or more Global Notes in exchange in whole or in part for Certificated Notes as provided herein on such terms as are acceptable to the Company and such Depositary. Thereupon, the Company shall execute, and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver, without service charge,
 - (A)to the Person specified by such Depositary new Notes of the same series and tenor, of any authorized denominations as requested by such Person, in an aggregate principal amount equal to and in exchange for such Person's beneficial interest in the Global Note; and
 - (B)to such Depositary a new Global Note in a denomination equal to the difference, if any, between the principal amount of the surrendered Global Note and the aggregate principal amount of Notes authenticated and delivered pursuant to clause (A) above.
- (v)Notes issued in exchange for a Global Note pursuant to this Section2.05 shall be registered in such names and in such authorized denominations as the Depositary for such Global Note, pursuant to instructions from its Participants or otherwise, shall instruct the Trustee or an agent of the Company or the Trustee. The Trustee or such agent shall deliver such Notes to or as directed by the Persons in whose names such Notes are so registered.

11

Section 2.06. Legends.

Each Global Note shall bear a legend in substantially the following form:

THIS SECURITY IS A SECURITY IN GLOBAL FORMWITHIN THE MEANING OF THE INDENTURE HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AND IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF A DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE THEREOF. THIS SECURITY MAYNOT BE EXCHANGED OR TRANSFERRED EXCEPT AS A WHOLE BY THE DEPOSITARY TO A NOMINEE OF THE DEPOSITARY OR BY THE DEPOSITARY OR ANY SUCH NOMINEE TO A SUCCESSOR DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE OF SUCH SUCCESSOR DEPOSITARY, EXCEPT IN THE LIMITED CIRCUMSTANCES DESCRIBED IN THE INDENTURE.

UNLESS THIS SECURITY IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY, A NEW YORK CORPORATION ("DTC"), TO THE COMPANY OR ITS AGENT FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY SECURITY ISSUED IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF CEDE& CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC (AND ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE& CO. OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.

Section 2.07. Paying Agent; Custodian; Place of Payment. The Company initially appoints the Trustee to act as the Paying Agent with respect to the Notes. The Company may appoint one or more additional Paying Agents, and the term "Paying Agent" includes any additional Paying Agent. The Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee shall be the initial place of payment. The office of any additional Paying Agent shall also be a place of payment.

Section 2.08. Optional Redemption; Open Market Purchases, etc. Prior to August 20, 2053 (six months prior to the maturity date of the Notes) (the "Par Call Date"), the Company may redeem the Notes at its option, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, at a redemption price (expressed as a percentage of principal amount and rounded to three decimal places) equal to the greater of:

(a)(1)the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest thereon discounted to the Redemption Date (assuming the Notes matured on the Par Call Date) on a semi-annual basis (assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) at the Treasury Rate plus 20 basis points less (2)interest accrued to the Redemption Date; and

12

(b) 100% of the principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed;

plus, in either case, accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the Redemption Date.

On or after the Par Call Date, the Company may redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes being redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the Redemption Date.

The Company's actions and determinations in determining the redemption price shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes, absent manifest error. Notice of any redemption of Notes will be mailed or electronically delivered (or otherwise transmitted in accordance with the Depositary's procedures) at least 10 days but not more than 60 days before the applicable Redemption Date, to each Holder of the Notes to be redeemed as provided in Section11.2 of the Base Indenture. Notice of any redemption of any Notes in connection with a corporate transaction that is pending (including an equity offering, an incurrence of indebtedness or a change of control) may, at the Company's discretion, be given subject to one or more conditions precedent, including, but not limited to, completion of the transaction. If such redemption is so subject to satisfaction of one or more conditions precedent, such notice shall describe each such condition, and such notice may be rescinded in the event that any or all such conditions shall not have been satisfied or otherwise waived by the Redemption Date. The Company shall notify each applicable Holder of any such rescission as soon as reasonably practicable after the Company determines that it will not be able satisfy or otherwise waive such conditions precedent.

In the case of a partial redemption, selection of the Notes for redemption will be made pro rata, by lot or by such other method as the Trustee in its sole discretion deems appropriate and fair. No Notes of a principal amount of \$2,000 or less will be redeemed in part. If any Note is to be redeemed in part only, the notice of redemption that relates to the Note will state the portion of the principal amount of the Note to be redeemed. A new Note in a principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of the Note will be issued in the name of the Holder of the Note upon surrender for cancellation of the original Note. For so long as the Notes are held by DTC (or another Depositary), the redemption of the Notes shall be done in accordance with the policies and procedures of the Depositary.

Unless the Company defaults in the payment of the redemption price, on and after the applicable Redemption Date, interest will cease to accrue on the Notes or portions of the Notes called for redemption.

The Company and/or its Affiliates may directly or indirectly, at any time and from time to time, acquire all or any part of the outstanding Notes by means other than a redemption, whether pursuant to tender or exchange offer(s), open market purchase(s), negotiated transaction(s), or otherwise, so long as such acquisition does not otherwise violate the terms of the Indenture.

13

Section 2.09. Change of Control.

(a)Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control Triggering Event, unless a notice of redemption has been delivered pursuant to Section 2.08 prior to or within 30 days after such Change of Control Triggering Event stating that all of the Notes will be redeemed as provided for in Section 2.08, each Holder of the Notes shall have the right to require the Company to make an offer (a "Change of Control Offer") to each Holder to repurchase all or any part (equal to \$2,000 or an integral multiple of \$1,000 in excess thereof) of each Holder's outstanding Notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of purchase (the "Change of Control Payment"), subject to the rights of Holders of Notes on the relevant record date to receive interest due on the relevant interest payment date. Within 30 days following any Change of Control Triggering Event, or, at the Company's option, prior to any Change of Control, but after the public announcement of the transaction or transactions that would constitute the Change of Control, the Company shall provide notice to each Holder, with a copy to the Trustee, describing the transaction or transactions that constitute or would constitute the Change of Control Triggering Event and stating: (1)that the Change of Control Offer is being made pursuant to this Section 2.09 and that all Notes properly tendered will be accepted for payment; (2) the purchase price and the purchase date, which, except as contemplated by clause (3) below, shall be no earlier than 30 days and no later than 60 days from the date such notice is provided (the "Change of Control Payment Date"); (3)if mailed prior to the date of the consummation of the Change of Control, that the offer to purchase is conditioned on the Change of Control Triggering Event occurring, with the Change of Control Payment Date to occur no earlier than 30 days and no later than 60 days from the date on which the Change of Control Triggering Event occurs; (4)that any Security not tendered will continue to accrue interest; (5)that, unless the Company defaults in the payment of the Change of Control Payment, all Notes accepted for payment pursuant to the Change of Control Offer shall cease to accrue interest after the Change of Control Payment Date; (6)that Holders electing to have any Notes purchased pursuant to the Change of Control Offer will be required to surrender the Notes, with the form entitled "Option of Holder to Elect Purchase" on the reverse of the Notes completed, to the Paying Agent at the address specified in the notice prior to the close of business on the third Business Day preceding the Change of Control Payment Date; (7)that Holders will be entitled to withdraw their election if the Paying Agent receives, not later than the close of business on the second Business Day preceding the Change of Control Payment Date, a telegram, telex, facsimile transmission or letter setting forth the name of the Holder, the principal amount of Notes delivered for purchase, and a statement that such Holder is withdrawing his election to have the Notes purchased; and (8)that Holders whose Notes are being purchased only in part will be issued new Notes equal in principal amount to the unpurchased portion of the Notes surrendered, which unpurchased portion must be equal to \$2,000 in principal amount or an integral multiple of \$1,000 in excess thereof. The Company shall comply with the requirements of Rule14e-1 under the Exchange Act and any other securities laws and regulations thereunder to the extent such laws and regulations are applicable in connection with the repurchase of Notes in connection with a Change of Control Triggering Event. To the extent that the provisions of any securities laws or regulations conflict with this Section 2.09, the Company will comply with the applicable securities laws and regulations and will not be deemed to have

breached its obligations under this Section 2.09 by virtue of such compliance.

(b) On the Change of Control Payment Date, the Company shall, to the extent lawful, (1) accept for payment all Notes or portions thereof properly tendered pursuant to the Change of Control Offer, (2)deposit with the Paying Agent an amount equal to the Change of Control Payment in respect of all Notes or portions thereof properly tendered and (3)deliver or cause to be delivered to the Trustee the Notes properly accepted together with an Officers' Certificate stating the aggregate principal amount of Notes or portions thereof being purchased by the Company. The Paying Agent shall promptly deliver to each Holder of Notes properly tendered the Change of Control Payment for such Notes, and the Company shall promptly execute, and the Trustee shall promptly authenticate and deliver (or cause to be transferred by book entry) to each Holder, a new Note equal in principal amount to any unpurchased portion of the Note surrendered by such Holder, if any; provided, that each such new Note shall be in a principal amount of \$2,000 or an integral multiple of \$1,000 in excess thereof. The Company shall publicly announce the results of the Change of Control Offer on or as soon as practicable after the Change of Control Payment Date.

14

The Company will not be required to make a Change of Control Offer upon the occurrence of a Change of Control Triggering Event if a third Person makes the Change of Control Offer in the manner, at the time and otherwise in compliance with the requirements set forth in this Section 2.09 and all other provisions of the Indenture applicable to a Change of Control Offer made by the Company and purchases all Notes properly tendered and not withdrawn under such Change of Control Offer.

Section 2.10. Sinking Fund. The Notes shall not have the benefit of a sinking fund.

Section 2.11. Methods of Receiving Payments on the Notes. If a Holder has given wire transfer instructions to the Company at least 10 Business Days prior to the applicable payment date, the Company will make all payments on such Holder's Notes in accordance with those instructions. Otherwise, payments on the Notes will be made at the office or agency of the Paying Agent and Registrar for the Notes; provided, however, that the Company may, at its option, elect to make interest payments by check mailed to the Holders at their addresses set forth in the Register of Notes; provided, further, that with respect to Notes represented by Global Notes, the Company shall make payments of principal and interest by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the account specified by the Depositary.

Section 2.12. <u>Consolidation, Merger, Conveyance, Transfer or Lease.</u> The Company may not consolidate or combine with or merge with or into or sell, assign (excluding any assignment solely as collateral for security purposes), convey, lease, transfer or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole to any Person or Persons in a single transaction or through a series of related transactions, unless:

(a)the Company is the successor, continuing or transferee Person or, if the Company is not the successor, continuing or transferee Person, the resulting, surviving or transferee Person (the "surviving entity") is a company organized and existing under the laws of the United States, any State thereof or the District of Columbia that expressly assumes all of the Company's obligations under the Notes and the Indenture pursuant to a supplemental indenture executed and delivered to the Trustee;

(b) immediately after giving effect to such transaction or series of related transactions, no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing; and

(c)the Company or the surviving entity delivers to the Trustee an Officers' Certificate and Opinion of Counsel stating that the transaction or series of related transactions and a supplemental indenture, if any, complies with the Indenture.

15

If any consolidation or merger of the Company or any sale, assignment, conveyance, lease, transfer or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole occurs in accordance with clauses (a)-(c)of this Section2.12, the surviving entity will succeed to, and be substituted for, and may exercise every right and power of, the Company under the Indenture with the same effect as if such surviving entity had been named as the initial issuer under the Indenture. The Company will (except in the case of a lease) be discharged from all obligations and covenants under the Indenture and the Notes, and may be liquidated and dissolved

For the avoidance of doubt, no Officers' Certificate or Opinion of Counsel will be required under clause(c)of this Sectionin connection with a consolidation, combination, merger, sale, assignment, conveyance, lease, transfer or other disposition involving only the Company and one or more of its Subsidiaries where the Company is the successor, continuing or transferee Person.

This Section shall apply to the Notes in lieu of Section 4.1 of the Base Indenture, which shall not apply to the Notes.

Section 2.13. Limitation on Liens.

(a)The Company shall not, and shall not permit any Consolidated Subsidiary to, incur any Debt secured by a Lien on any Principal Property or any shares of Capital Stock of any Consolidated Subsidiary that owns a Principal Property (other than any Subsidiary that is principally engaged in leasing or receivables financing transactions or that holds as all or substantially all of its assets equity interests in one or more such Subsidiaries), in each case, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, without making effective provision that the Notes shall be secured equally and ratably with (or prior to) such secured Debt for so long as such secured Debt remains outstanding, unless, upon giving effect to the incurrence of such Debt and any substantially simultaneous permanent repayment of any secured Debt, the aggregate amount of all Debt secured by a Lien on any Principal Property or on any shares of Capital Stock of any Consolidated Subsidiary that owns a Principal Property (other than any Subsidiary that is principally engaged in leasing or receivables financing transactions or that holds as all or substantially all of its assets equity interests in one or more such Subsidiaries), together with all Attributable Debt of the Company and its Consolidated Subsidiaries in respect of Sale and Leaseback Transactions involving Principal Properties, would not exceed 15% of the Consolidated Total Assets of the Company and the Consolidated Subsidiaries. The aggregate amount of all secured Debt referred to in the preceding sentence shall exclude any then existing secured Debt that has been secured equally and ratably with the Notes.

(b)The restriction set forth in Section2.13(a)shall not apply to, and there shall be excluded from all Debt so secured in any computation under the restriction in Section 2.13(a) and under the restriction in Section 2.14, Debt secured by:

(i)Liens on any property or shares of Capital Stock existing at the time of acquisition thereof; provided that any such Lien (1)was in existence prior to the date of such acquisition, (2) was not incurred in contemplation thereof and (3) does not extend to any other property or shares of Capital Stock (other than proceeds);

- (ii) Liens in favor of the Company or a Consolidated Subsidiary;
- (iii) Liens in favor of governmental bodies to secure progress or advance payments pursuant to any contract or provision of any statute;
- (iv)Liens created or incurred in connection with an industrial revenue bond, industrial development bond, pollution control bond or similar financing arrangement between the Company or a Consolidated Subsidiary and any federal, state or municipal government or other governmental body or quasi-governmental agency;
- (v)Liens on property or shares of Capital Stock to secure all or part of the cost of acquiring (including, without limitation, acquisitions through merger or consolidation), substantially repairing or altering, constructing, developing or substantially improving the property, or to secure Debt incurred for any such purpose, to the extent that any such Lien relates solely to the property subject to the Lien, proceeds thereof and agreements relating thereto and that the principal amount of Debt secured by each such Lien was incurred concurrently with, or within 180 days of, such acquisition (including, without limitation, acquisitions through merger or consolidation), repair, alteration, construction (or the commencement of commercial operation of such property, whichever is later), development or improvement and does not exceed the cost to the Company or such Consolidated Subsidiary of the property subject to the Lien, as determined in accordance with GAAP;
 - (vi) Liens on property or shares of Capital Stock of any entity existing at the time such entity becomes a Subsidiary;
- (vii)Liens in favor of a governmental agency to qualify the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary to do business, maintain self-insurance or obtain other benefits, or Liens under workers' compensation laws, unemployment insurance laws, social security laws or regulations or similar legislation;
- (viii)Liens imposed by law, such as laborers' or other employees', carriers', warehousemen's, mechanics', materialmen's, repairmen's, vendors' and other like Liens;
- (ix)Liens arising out of judgments or awards against the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary with respect to which the Company or such Consolidated Subsidiary at the time shall be prosecuting an appeal or proceedings for review;
- (x)Liens for taxes, assessments, governmental charges or levies not yet subject to penalties for nonpayment or the amount or validity of which is being in good faith contested by appropriate action by the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary, as the case may be; and
- (xi)any refinancing, refunding, extension, renewal or replacement, in whole or in part, of any Lien referred to above, to the extent that such refinancing, refunding, extension, renewal or replacement Lien is limited to the same property or shares of Capital Stock that secured the Lien so refinanced, refunded, extended, renewed or replaced (and proceeds thereof and any after-acquired collateral within the scope of the collateral granting clause that was in effect prior to such refinancing, refunding, extension, renewal or replacement) and will not exceed the principal amount of Debt so secured at the time of such refinancing, refunding, extension, renewal or replacement; *provided* that such principal amount of Debt so secured shall continue to be included in the computation in the first paragraph of this covenant and under Section 2.14 to the extent so included at the time of such refinancing, refunding, extension, renewal or replacement.

17

For purposes of this Section2.13, an "acquisition" of property (including real, personal or intangible property or shares of Capital Stock) shall include any transaction or series of related transactions by which the Company or a Consolidated Subsidiary acquires, directly or indirectly, an interest, or an additional interest (to the extent thereof), in such property, including an acquisition through merger or consolidation with, or an acquisition of an interest in, a Person owning an interest in such property.

Section 2.14. Limitation on Sale and Leaseback Transactions.

- (a)The Company shall not, and shall not permit any of its Consolidated Subsidiaries to, enter into any Sale and Leaseback Transaction with respect to any Principal Property unless:
 - (i)upon giving effect thereto, the aggregate amount of all Attributable Debt of the Company and its Consolidated Subsidiaries with respect to Sale and Leaseback Transactions involving Principal Properties plus the aggregate amount of Debt secured by Liens on any Principal Property or on any shares of Capital Stock of any Consolidated Subsidiary (other than any Subsidiary that is principally engaged in leasing or receivables financing transactions or that holds as all or substantially all of its assets equity interests in one or more such Subsidiaries) incurred without equally and ratably securing the Notes pursuant to Section2.13 (other than Liens of the types described in Section 2.13(b)(i)-(xi)) would not exceed 15% of the Consolidated Total Assets of the Company and the Consolidated Subsidiaries; or
 - (ii)within 180 days of such Sale and Leaseback Transaction involving a Principal Property, the Company or such Consolidated Subsidiary applies an amount not less than the greater of:
 - (1) the Net Proceeds of the Sale and Leaseback Transaction; and
 - (2) the fair market value of the Principal Property so leased at the time of such transaction;

to either (A)the retirement or prepayment, and in either case, the permanent reduction, of Funded Debt of the Company or any Consolidated Subsidiary (including that in the case of a revolver or similar arrangement that makes credit available, such commitment is so permanently reduced by such amount); or (B)the purchase of other property that will constitute Principal Property.

18

- (b)The restriction set forth in Section 2.14(a) shall not apply to any Sale and Leaseback Transaction, and there shall be excluded from Attributable Debt in any computation described in this Section 2.14 and in Section 2.13 with respect to any such transaction:
 - (i) solely between the Company and a Consolidated Subsidiary or solely between Consolidated Subsidiaries;
 - (ii) financed through an industrial revenue bond, industrial development bond, pollution control bond or similar financing arrangement between the Company or a Consolidated Subsidiary and any federal, state or municipal government or other governmental body or quasi- governmental agency;
 - (iii) in which the applicable lease is for a period, including renewal rights, of three years or less;
 - (iv)as to which the effective date of any such arrangement or the purchaser's commitment therefor is within 180 days prior or subsequent to the acquisition of

the Principal Property (including, without limitation, acquisition by merger or consolidation) or the completion of construction and commencement of operation thereof, whichever is later; or

- (v) in which the lease payment is created in connection with a project financed with, and such obligation constitutes, a Nonrecourse Obligation.
- Section 2.15. Events of Default. In lieu of Section 6.1 of the Base Indenture (which shall not apply to the Notes), the following are Events of Default with respect to the Notes:
 - (a) the Company defaults in the payment of any installment of interest on any Note when due, continued for 30 days;
- (b)the Company defaults in the payment of principal (or premium, if any) on any Note as and when the same becomes due either upon maturity, by declaration or otherwise;
- (c) the Company defaults in the performance of any of the other covenants or agreements in the Indenture relating to the Notes which is not remedied within a period of 90 days after written notice by the Trustee or Holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Notes then outstanding;
- (d)there occurs an event of default under the terms of any indenture or instrument for borrowed money under which the Company or any Significant Subsidiary has outstanding an aggregate principal amount of at least \$140,000,000, which event of default results in an acceleration of the payment of all or a portion of such indebtedness for money borrowed prior to its maturity, which acceleration is not rescinded or annulled within 30 days after notice of such acceleration; and
 - (e) (i) the Company or any Significant Subsidiary:
 - (A) commences a voluntary case or proceeding under any Bankruptcy Law;
 - (B) consents to the entry of a judgment, decree or order for relief against it in an involuntary case or proceeding under any Bankruptcy Law;

19

- (C) consents to the appointment of a Custodian of it or for any substantial part of its property;
- (D) makes a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors; or
- (E) consents to or acquiesces in the institution of a bankruptcy or an insolvency proceeding against it under any Bankruptcy Law;

or takes any comparable action under any foreign laws relating to insolvency; or

- (f) (ii) a court of competent jurisdiction enters an order or decree under any Bankruptcy Law that:
 - (A) is for relief against the Company or any Significant Subsidiary;
 - (B) appoints a Custodian of the Company or any Significant Subsidiary; or
 - (C) orders the winding up or liquidation of the Company or any Significant Subsidiary;

or any similar relief is granted under any foreign laws and the order, decree or relief remains unstayed and in effect for 90 days.

- Section 2.16. <u>Modification and Waiver</u>. In addition to those matters set forth in the Base Indenture, the following modifications or amendments to the Indenture may not be made without the consent of each of the Holders of the Notes so affected:
 - (a) cause any Note to become subordinate in right of payment to any other Debt, except to the extent provided in the terms of such Note; or
 - (b) impair the right of any Holder of the Notes to require repurchase of the Notes on the terms provided in the Indenture.
 - Section 2.17. Original Issue Discount. Section 3.7 of the Base Indenture shall not apply to the Notes.

ARTICLE III

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- Section 3.01. Recitals By Company. The recitals in this Supplemental Indenture are made by the Company only and not by the Trustee, and all of the provisions contained in the Base Indenture in respect of the rights, privileges, immunities, powers and duties of the Trustee shall be applicable in respect of the Notes and of this Supplemental Indenture as fully and with like effect as if set forth herein in full.
- Section 3.02. <u>Application to Notes Only.</u> Each and every term and condition contained in this Supplemental Indenture that modifies, amends or supplements the terms and conditions of the Base Indenture shall apply only to the Notes established hereby and not to any other series of Securities established under the Base Indenture.

20

- Section 3.03. <u>Benefits</u>. Nothing contained in the Indenture shall or shall be construed to confer upon any Person other than a Holder of the Notes, the Company and the Trustee any right or interest to avail itself of any benefit under any provision of the Indenture or the Notes.
- Section 3.04. Effective Date. This Supplemental Indenture shall be effective as of the date first above written upon the execution and delivery hereof by each of the parties hereto.
- Section 3.05. <u>Ratification</u>. As supplemented hereby, the Base Indenture is in all respects ratified and confirmed and all the terms, provisions and conditions thereof remain in full force and effect.

Section 3.06. Instructions. The Trustee shall have the right to accept and act upon instructions, including funds transfer instructions ('Instructions') given pursuant to this Indenture and delivered using Electronic Means; provided, however, that the Company shall provide to the Trustee an incumbency certificate listing officers with the authority to provide such Instructions ("Authorized Officers") and containing specimen signatures of such Authorized Officers, which incumbency certificate shall be amended by the Company whenever a person is to be added or deleted from the listing. If the Company elects to give the Trustee Instructions using Electronic Means and the Trustee in its discretion elects to act upon such Instructions, the Trustee's understanding of such Instructions shall be deemed controlling. The Company understands and agrees that the Trustee cannot determine the identity of the actual sender of such Instructions and that the Trustee shall conclusively presume that directions that purport to have been sent by an Authorized Officer listed on the incumbency certificate provided to the Trustee have been sent by such Authorized Officer. The Company shall be responsible for ensuring that only Authorized Officers transmit such Instructions to the Trustee and that the Company and all Authorized Officers are solely responsible to safeguard the use and confidentiality of applicable user and authorization codes, passwords and/or authentication keys upon receipt by the Company. The Trustee shall not be liable for any losses, costs or expenses arising directly or indirectly from the Trustee's reliance upon and compliance with such Instructions notwithstanding such directions conflict or are inconsistent with a subsequent written instruction. The Company agrees: (i)to assume all risks arising out of the use of Electronic Means to submit Instructions to the Trustee, including without limitation the risk of the Trustee acting on unauthorized Instructions, and the risk of interception and misuse by third parties; (ii) that it is fully informed of the protections and risks associated with the various methods of transmitting Instructions to the Trustee and that there may be more secure methods of transmitting Instructions than the method(s)selected by the Company; (iii)that the security procedures (if any) to be followed in connection with its transmission of Instructions provide to it a commercially reasonable degree of protection in light of its particular needs and circumstances; and (iv)to notify the Trustee immediately upon learning of any compromise or unauthorized use of the security procedures.

Section 3.07. Counterparts. This Supplemental Indenture may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, and such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument.

21

Section 3.08. <u>Governing Law; Waiver of Jury Trial</u>. THIS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE AND THE NOTES SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK. EACH OF THE COMPANY AND THE TRUSTEE HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY AND ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE, THE NOTES OR THE TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

[Signatures on Next Page]

22

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Supplemental Indenture to be duly executed as of the date first written above.

CUMMINS INC., an Indiana corporation

By: /s/ Mark Smith

Name: Mark Smith

Title: Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

[Signature Page to the Eighth Supplemental Indenture]

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a national banking association (as successor- in-interest to U.S. Bank National Association), as Trustee

By: /s/ Linda Garcia
Name: Linda Garcia
Title: Vice President

[Signature Page to the Eighth Supplemental Indenture]

EXHIBIT A

FORM OF NOTE

THIS SECURITY IS A SECURITY IN GLOBAL FORM WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE INDENTURE HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AND IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF A DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE THEREOF. THIS SECURITY MAY NOT BE EXCHANGED OR TRANSFERRED EXCEPT AS A WHOLE BY THE DEPOSITARY TO A NOMINEE OF THE DEPOSITARY OR BY THE DEPOSITARY OR ANY SUCH NOMINEE TO A SUCCESSOR DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE OF SUCH SUCCESSOR DEPOSITARY, EXCEPT IN THE LIMITED CIRCUMSTANCES DESCRIBED IN THE INDENTURE.

UNLESS THIS SECURITY IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY, A NEW YORK CORPORATION ("DTC"), TO THE COMPANY OR ITS AGENT FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY SECURITY ISSUED IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC (AND ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO. OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE &

CUMMINS INC. 5.450% SENIOR NOTE DUE 2054

Principal Amount	\$
CUSIP No.: 231021 AX4	
ISIN No.: US231021AX49	

No. __

A-1

Payments under this Note will be made in the manner contemplated by Section 2.11 of the Supplemental Indenture (as defined below).

Unless the certificate of authentication herein has been duly executed by the Trustee referred to herein by manual signature, this Note shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.

This Note is one of a duly authorized issue of securities of the Company (the "Securities" and each, a "Security") issued under an Indenture dated as of September 16, 2013 (the "Base Indenture"), between the Company and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association (as successor-in-interest to U.S. Bank National Association), as trustee (the "Trustee," which term includes any successor Trustee under the Indenture), as amended, modified and supplemented by a Eighth Supplemental Indenture dated as of February 20, 2024 (the "Supplemental Indenture" and the Base Indenture, as amended, modified and supplemented by the Supplemental Indenture, the 'Indenture"), between the Company and the Trustee, to which Indenture reference is hereby made for a statement of the respective rights, limitations of rights, duties and immunities thereunder of the Company, the Trustee and the Holders of the Notes and of the terms upon which the Notes are, and are to be, authenticated and delivered. This Note is one of the series and issue additional Notes that have the same ranking, interest rate, maturity date and other terms as this Note, other than with respect to the date of issuance, the issue price and, in some cases, the first interest payment date.

The Company may, at its option, redeem some or all of the Notes at any time and from time to time as described in Section 2.08 of the Supplemental Indenture. In addition, the Company and/or its Affiliates may directly or indirectly, at any time and from time to time, acquire all or any part of the outstanding Notes by means other than a redemption, whether pursuant to tender or exchange offer(s), open market purchase(s), negotiated transaction(s), or otherwise, so long as such acquisition does not otherwise violate the terms of the Indenture.

Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control Triggering Event, unless a notice of redemption has been delivered pursuant to Section 2.08 of the Supplemental Indenture prior to or within 30 days after such Change of Control Triggering Event stating that all of the Notes will be redeemed as provided for in Section 2.08 of the Supplemental Indenture, each Holder of the Notes will have the right to require the Company to make an offer to each Holder to repurchase all or any part of each Holder's Notes pursuant to a Change of Control Offer at a purchase price equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of purchase, subject to the rights of Holders of Notes on the relevant record date to receive interest due on the relevant interest payment date. Additional terms and conditions relating to Change of Control Offers are set forth in the Indenture.

A-2

The Company shall have no obligation to redeem or purchase the Notes pursuant to any sinking fund or analogous provision.

The Indenture contains certain covenants that, among other things, limit the ability of the Company and its Consolidated Subsidiaries to consolidate or combine with, merge or sell, assign, convey, lease, transfer or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of their assets, to incur Debt secured by a Lien or to enter into Sale and Leaseback Transactions, in each case in the manner and to the extent set forth in the Indenture.

If an Event of Default with respect to the Notes shall have occurred and be continuing, the principal of all the Notes may be declared due and payable in the manner and with the effect provided in the Indenture.

The Company and the Trustee may enter into an indenture or indentures supplemental to the Indenture without notice to or the consent of the Holders for limited purposes specified in the Indenture. With the consent of the Holders of greater than 50% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Securities of each series affected by such supplemental indenture, the Company and the Trustee may enter into an indenture or indentures supplemental to the Indenture for the purpose of adding any provisions to or changing the provisions of the Indenture or any supplement thereto or of modifying in any manner the rights of the Holders of the Securities of each such affected series; provided, however, that no such supplemental indenture shall be entered into for any of the purposes described in Section 9.2 of the Base Indenture or Section 2.16 of the Supplemental Indenture, without the consent of the Holder of each outstanding Security of the applicable series affected thereby.

The Holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding Notes may on behalf of the Holders of all the Notes waive compliance in a particular instance by the Company with any provision of the Indenture with respect to the Notes, as provided for in the Indenture.

Holders of Notes may not enforce their rights pursuant to the Indenture or the Notes except as provided in the Indenture. No reference herein to the Indenture and no provision of this Note or of the Indenture shall alter or impair the obligation of the Company, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of (and premium, if any) and interest on this Note at the times, place and rate, and in the coin or currency, herein prescribed.

	otes are issuable in registered form without coupons in minimum denominations of U.S. \$2,000 and any integral mul Indenture and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, Notes are exchangeable for a like aggregate principal amounts.	
	A-3	
authenticate and any Note at any Note for an eq	to be exchanged shall be surrendered at any office or agency maintained by the Company for such purpose, and the Conditional deliver in exchange therefor the Notes which the Holder making the exchange shall be entitled to receive. Upon due such office or agency, the Company shall execute and register and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver in the natical aggregate amount. Registration or registration of transfer of any Note by the Registrar (initially the Trustee) in elivery of such Note, duly authenticated, shall be deemed to complete the registration or registration of transfer of such	presentment for registration of transfer of ame of the transferee or transferees a new in the registry books maintained by such
governmental c the Trustee may	vice charge shall be made for any exchange or registration of transfer, but the Company may require payment of a narge payable in connection therewith. Prior to due presentment of a Note for registration of transfer, the Company, the treat the Person in whose name a Note is registered as the owner for all purposes whether or not such Note be overdent shall be affected by notice to the contrary.	Trustee and any agent of the Company or
Depositary for to other applicable Company withi	ote is in the form of a Global Note as provided in the Indenture. If at any time the Depositary notifies the Company the his Note or if at any time the Depositary for this Note shall no longer be eligible or in good standing under the Securiti statute or regulation, the Company shall appoint a successor Depositary with respect to this Note. If a successor Deposit of 90 days after the Company receives notice or becomes aware of such ineligibility, the Company will issue Notes in Motes in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of this Global Note.	es Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or sitary for this Note is not appointed by the
had against any similar capacity or by the enforce	ourse under or upon any obligation, covenant or agreement contained in the Indenture, in any Note, or because of any incorporator or other Person acting in a similar capacity, as such, or against any past, present or future stockholder, of as such, of the Company or of any successor, either directly or through the Company or any successor, under any rule element of any assessment or by any legal or equitable proceeding or otherwise, all such liability being expressly waivelders thereof and as part of the consideration for the issue of the Notes.	fficer, director or other Person acting in a of law, statute or constitutional provision
The N	otes are subject to defeasance at the option of the Company as provided in the Indenture.	
All ter	ms used in this Note which are defined in the Indenture shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Indenture.	
	A-4	
IN WI	TNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this instrument to be duly executed.	
Dated: February	20, 2024	
•	Cummins Inc.	
	By: Name:	
	Title:	
	[Signature Page to 2054 Global Note]	
This is	one of the Notes of the series designated therein referred to in the within-mentioned Indenture.	
Dated: February	20, 2024	
Ву:		
~j·	Authorized Officer	
	[Signature Page to 2054 Global Note]	
	ABBREVIATIONS	
The following a or regulations:	bbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this instrument, shall be construed as though they were written	en out in full according to applicable laws
	os toponts in common	Custodian
TEN COM TEN ENT JT TEN	 as tenants in common as tenants by the entireties as joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common 	Custodian(Cust) (Minor) under Uniform Gifts to Minors Act
		(State)

ASSIGNMENT FORM FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sell(s), assign(s) and transfer(s) unto: PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY OR OTHER IDENTIFYING NUMBER OF ASSIGNEE PLEASE PRINT OR TYPEWRITE NAME AND ADDRESS INCLUDING POSTAL ZIP CODE OF ASSIGNEE the within Security and all rights thereunder, hereby irrevocably constituting and appointing ______ attorney to transfer said Security on the books of the Company, with full power of substitution in the premises. Signature NOTICE: THE SIGNATURE TO THIS ASSIGNMENT MUST CORRESPOND WITH THE NAME AS WRITTEN UPON THE FACE OF THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT IN EVERY PARTICULAR, WITHOUT ALTERATION OR ENLARGEMENT OR ANY CHANGE WHATEVER A-8 OPTION OF HOLDER TO ELECT PURCHASE If you want to elect to have this Note purchased by the Company pursuant to Section 2.09 of the Supplemental Indenture, check the box below: ☐ Section 2.09 If you want to elect to have only part of the Note purchased by the Company pursuant to Section 2.09 of the Supplemental Indenture, state the amount you elect to have purchased: Date: Your Signature: (Sign exactly as your name appears on the face of this Note) Tax Identification No: ____

SCHEDULE OF INCREASES AND DECREASES

The following increases and decreases to this Global Note have been made:

			Principal	
	Amount of	Amount of	Amount of this	Signature of
	Decrease in	Increase in	Global Note	Authorized
Date of	Principal	Principal	Following Such	Officer of
Increase or	Amount of this	Amount of this	Decrease or	Trustee or Note
Decrease	Global Note	Global Note	Increase	Custodian



ATTORNEYS AT LAW
777 EAST WISCONSIN AVENUE
MILWAUKEE, WI 53202-5306
414.271.2400 TEL
414.297.4900 FAX
WWW.FOLEY.COM

CLIENT/MATTER NUMBER 089934-1363

February 20, 2024

Cummins Inc. 500 Jackson Street Box 3005 Columbus, Indiana 47202-3005

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as counsel for Cummins Inc., an Indiana corporation (the "Company"), in connection with a Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Registration No. 333-262584), as amended (the "Registration Statement"), including the prospectus constituting a part thereof, dated February 8, 2022, and the prospectus supplement, dated February 14, 2024 (collectively, the "Prospectus"), filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), relating to the issuance and sale by the Company of \$500,000,000 aggregate principal amount of the Company's 4.900% Senior Notes due 2029 (the "2029 Notes"); \$750,000,000 aggregate principal amount of the Company's 5.150% Senior Notes due 2034 (the "2034 Notes"); and \$1,000,000,000 aggregate principal amount of the Company's 5.450% Senior Notes due 2054 (the "2054 Notes" and, together with the 2029 Notes and the 2034 Notes, the "Notes") in the manner set forth in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus. The Notes have been issued under the Indenture, dated as of September 16, 2013 (the "Indenture"), between the Company and the Trustee, establishing the terms and providing for the issuance of the 2029 Notes (the "2029 Supplemental Indenture") by a supplemental indenture, between the Company and the Trustee, establishing the terms and providing for the issuance of the 2034 Notes (the "2034 Supplemental Indenture") and by a supplemental indenture, between the Company and the Trustee, establishing the terms and providing for the issuance of the 2034 Notes (the "2034 Supplemental Indenture").

As counsel to the Company in connection with the issuance and sale of the Notes, we have examined: (i) the Registration Statement, including the Prospectus and the exhibits (including those incorporated by reference) constituting a part of the Registration Statement; (ii) the Indenture, the 2029 Supplemental Indenture, the 2034 Supplemental Indenture and the 2054 Supplemental Indenture; (iii) the Notes; and (iv) such other proceedings, documents and records as we have deemed necessary to enable us to render the opinions set forth below.

AUSTIN BOSTON CHICAGO DALLAS DENVER DETROIT HOUSTON JACKSONVILLE LOS ANGELES MADISON MEXICO CITY MIAMI MILWAUKEE NEW YORK ORLANDO SACRAMENTO SALT LAKE CITY SAN DIEGO SAN FRANCISCO SILICON VALLEY TALLAHASSEE TAMPA WASHINGTON, D.C. BRUSSELS TOKYO

#FOLEY

FOLEY & LARDNER LLP

Cummins Inc. February 20, 2024 Page 2

In our examination of the above-referenced documents, we have assumed the genuineness of all signatures, the authenticity of all documents, certificates and instruments submitted to us as originals and the conformity with the originals of all documents submitted to us as copies. We have also assumed that (i) the Trustee is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of its jurisdiction or organization, and is duly qualified to engage in the activities contemplated by the Indenture; (ii) each of the Indenture, the 2029 Supplemental Indenture and the 2054 Supplemental Indenture has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by, and represents the valid and binding obligation of, the Trustee, enforceable against the Trustee in accordance with its terms; (iii) the Notes have been duly authority to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under the Indenture, the 2029 Supplemental Indenture, the 2034 Supplemental Inde

Based upon and subject to the foregoing and the other matters set forth herein and having regard for such legal considerations as we deem relevant, we are of the opinion that:

- 1. The Company is validly existing under the laws of the State of Indiana.
- 2. The Company has all requisite corporate power and authority to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under the Indenture, the 2029 Supplemental Indenture, the 2034 Supplemental Indenture and the Notes.
- 3. The execution, delivery and performance by the Company of the Indenture, the 2029 Supplemental Indenture, the 2034 Supplemental Indenture, the 2054 Supplemental Indenture and the Notes has been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of the Company.
- 4. The Notes, when delivered by the Company in the manner and for the consideration contemplated by the Registration Statement and the Prospectus, will be legally issued and valid and binding obligations of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with their terms, subject to (i) the effect of any bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, arrangement or similar laws affecting the rights and remedies of creditors' generally, including without limitation the effect of statutory or other laws regarding fraudulent transfers or preferential transfers and (ii) general principles of equity, including without limitation concepts of materiality, reasonableness, good faith and fair dealing and the possible unavailability of specific performance, injunctive relief or other equitable remedies regardless of whether enforceability is

considered in a proceeding in equity or at law.

We express no opinion as to any provision of any instrument, agreement or other document (i) regarding severability of the provisions thereof; (ii) providing that the assertion or employment of any right or remedy shall not prevent the concurrent assertion or employment of any other right or remedy, or that every right and remedy shall be cumulative and in addition to every other right and remedy, or that any delay or omission to exercise any right or remedy shall not impair any right or remedy or constitute a waiver thereof; (iii) provisions relating to indemnification, exculpation or contribution, to the extent such provisions may be held unenforceable due to the negligence or willful misconduct of the indemnified party; or (iv) regarding consents to, or restrictions upon, governing law, jurisdiction or venue.

FOLEY & LARDNER LLP

Cummins Inc. February 20, 2024 Page 3

We express no opinion as to the laws of any jurisdiction other than the State of New York, the State of Indiana and the federal laws of the United States.

We hereby consent to the deemed incorporation by reference of this opinion into the Registration Statement and the Prospectus and to the references to our firm therein. In giving this consent, we do not admit that we are "experts" within the meaning of Section 11 of the Securities Act or within the category of persons whose consent is required by Section 7 of the Securities Act.

Very truly yours,

/s/ FOLEY & LARDNER LLP